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Advanced International Multitech Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

September 30, 2018, December 31, 2017 and September 30, 2017 
(The Consolidated Balance Sheets on September 30, 2018 and 2017 Were Reviewed Only, Not Audited in Accordance with 

the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in the Republic of China) 
Unit: In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars 

 

 

 
      September 30, 2018   December 31,  2017   September 30, 2017  

 Assets  Notes  A m o u n t   %   A m o u n t   %   A m o u n t   %  

 Current assets                        

1100 Cash and Cash Equivalents  6(1)  $ 1,229,868   19   $ 989,078   15   $ 1,488,449   25  

1110 Financial assets at FVTPL - current  6 (2) and 

12 (4)   212   -    1,368   -    5   -  

1150 Notes receivable - net  6(4)   7,657   -    5,980   -    4,153   -  

1170 Accounts receivable- Net  6(4)   1,602,181   24    2,288,717   34    1,340,609   23  

1200 Other receivables     17,196   -    19,173   -    20,602   -  

1220 Current income tax assets     9,491   -    329   -    1,837   -  

130X Inventories  6(5)   1,677,851   26    1,499,438   23    1,304,410   22  

1410 Prepayments  6(6)   155,182   2    126,101   2    117,784   2  

1470 Other current assets     18,256   -    6,227   -    14,270   -  

11XX Total current assets     4,717,894   71    4,936,411   74    4,292,119   72  

 Non-current assets                        

1517 Financial assets measured at 

FVTOCI - non-current 

 6(3) 

  55   -    -   -    -   -  

1543 Financial Assets Carried at Cost - 

Non-current 

 12 (4) 

  -   -    55   -    55   -  

1550 Investments accounted for using 

equity method 

 6 (7) and 7 

  5,101   -    -   -    -   -  

1600 Property, plant and equipment  6 (8) and 8   1,674,967   25    1,480,810   23    1,499,814   25  

1780 Intangible assets  6(9)   14,650   -    18,519   -    15,102   -  

1840 Deferred income tax assets     50,957   1    56,590   1    53,742   1  

1915 Prepayments for business facilities     90,782   2    77,769   1    67,878   1  

1990 Other non-current assets - others  6 (11) and 

8   51,141   1    55,482   1    56,153   1  

15XX Total non-current assets     1,887,653   29    1,689,225   26    1,692,744   28  

1XXX Total assets    $ 6,605,547   100   $ 6,625,636   100   $ 5,984,863   100  
 

(Continue to next page)



Advanced International Multitech Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

September 30, 2018, December 31, 2017 and September 30, 2017 
(The Consolidated Balance Sheets on September 30, 2018 and 2017 Were Reviewed Only, Not Audited in Accordance with 

the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in the Republic of China) 
Unit: In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars 

 

 

     September 30, 2018   December 31,  2017   September 30, 2017  
 Liabilities and Equity  Note  A m o u n t   %   A m o u n t   %   A m o u n t   %  

 Current liabilities                        

2100 Short-term loans  6 (12) 

and 8  $ 76,060   1   $ 90,454   2   $ 89,396   1  

2120 Financial liabilities at FVTPL - 

current 

 6 (13) 

and 12 

(4)   -   -    -   -    2,807   -  

2150 Notes payable     2,759   -    1,697   -    2,263   -  

2170 Accounts payable     1,241,202   19    1,203,816   18    950,386   16  

2200 Other payables  6(14)   926,519   14    1,061,639   16    881,257   15  

2230 Current income tax liabilities     129,921   2    85,314   1    69,722   1  

2300 Other current liabilities     43,552   1    36,076   1    40,607   1  

21XX Total current liabilities     2,420,013   37    2,478,996   38    2,036,438   34  

 Non-current liabilities                        

2540 Long-term loans  6 (15) 

and 8   48,880   1    -   -    -   -  

2570 Deferred income tax liabilities     109,068   1    89,243   1    84,257   1  

2640 Net defined benefit liability - 

non-current 

  

  69,486   1    69,476   1    63,278   1  

2670 Other non-current liabilities - 

others 

  

  599   -    525   -    569   -  

25XX Total non-current liabilities     228,033   3    159,244   2    148,104   2  

2XXX Total liabilities     2,648,046   40    2,638,240   40    2,184,542   36  

 Equity                        

 Equity attributable to shareholders 

of the parent company 

  

                     

 Capital  6(18)                      

3110 Capital of common shares     1,353,127   21    1,353,127   21    1,353,127   23  

 Capital surplus  6(19)                      

3200 Capital surplus     781,236   11    781,236   11    781,236   13  

 Retained earnings  6(20)                      

3310 Legal reserve     743,087   11    698,847   11    698,847   12  

3320 Special reserve     65,616   1    21,412   -    21,412   -  

3350 Undistributed earnings     756,121   12    857,118   13    673,454   11  

 Other equity                        

3400 Other equity   (  85,895 ) ( 1 ) (  65,616 ) ( 1 ) (  61,329 ) ( 1 ) 

31XX Total equity attributable to 

shareholders of the parent 

company 

  

  3,613,292   55    3,646,124   55    3,466,747   58  

36XX Non-controlling interests     344,209   5    341,272   5    333,574   6  

3XXX Total equity     3,957,501   60    3,987,396   60    3,800,321   64  

 Significant contingent liabilities 

and unrecognized contractual 

commitments 

 9 

                     

3X2X Total liabilities and equity    $ 6,605,547   100   $ 6,625,636   100   $ 5,984,863   100   



Advanced International Multitech Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 

January 1 to September 30, 2018 and 2017 
(Reviewed Only, Not Audited in Accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in the Republic of China) 

Unit: In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars 
(Except for Earnings Per Share Presented in New Taiwan Dollars) 

 

      J u l y  1 ,  2 0 1 8 

to September 30, 2018 

  J u l y  1 ,  2 0 1 7 

to September 30, 2017 

  J a n u a r y  1 ,  2 0 1 8 

to September 30, 2018 

  J a n u a r y  1 ,  2 0 1 7 

to September 30, 2017 

 

Item  Note  A m o u n t   %   A m o u n t   %   A m o u n t   %   A m o u n t   %  

4000 Operating revenue  6(21)  $ 2,326,119   100   $ 2,142,303   100   $ 7,686,970   100   $ 7,157,807   100  

5000 Operating costs  6 (5) (9) (25) 

(26) (  2,010,581 ) ( 86 ) (  1,824,887 ) ( 85 ) (  6,690,223 ) ( 87 ) (  6,088,925 ) ( 85 ) 

5900 Gross operating profit     315,538   14    317,416   15    996,747   13    1,068,882   15  

 Operating Expenses  6 (9) (25) (26), 

and 7                             

6100 Selling expense   (  46,949 ) ( 2 ) (  53,477 ) ( 2 ) (  145,678 ) ( 2 ) (  157,441 ) ( 2 ) 

6200 Administrative expense   (  105,763 ) ( 4 ) (  98,317 ) ( 5 ) (  308,918 ) ( 4 ) (  289,178 ) ( 4 ) 

6300 Research and development 

expenses 

  

(  109,130 ) ( 5 ) (  86,327 ) ( 4 ) (  287,408 ) ( 3 ) (  254,399 ) ( 4 ) 

6450 Expected credit impairment 

gain 

  

  3,759   -    -   -    6,613   -    -   -  

6000 Total operating expenses   (  258,083 ) ( 11 ) (  238,121 ) ( 11 ) (  735,391 ) ( 9 ) (  701,018 ) ( 10 ) 

6500 Other Income and Expenses - 

Net 

 6(22) 

  29,175   1    19,472   1    86,176   1    51,407   1  

6900 Operating income     86,630   4    98,767   5    347,532   5    419,271   6  

 Non-operating income and 

expenses 

  

                            

7010 Other income  6(23)   4,310   -    1,760   -    9,051   -    3,915   -  

7020 Other gains and losses  6(24)   45,501   2  (  24,930 ) ( 1 )   101,884   1  (  127,505 ) ( 2 ) 

7050 Finance costs   (  55 )  -  (  17 )  -  (  181 )  -  (  68 )  -  

7000 Total non-operating income 

and expenses 

  

  49,756   2  (  23,187 ) ( 1 )   110,754   1  (  123,658 ) ( 2 ) 

7900 Income before tax     136,386   6    75,580   4    458,286   6    295,613   4  

7950 Income tax expense  6(27) (  32,168 ) ( 1 ) (  17,813 ) ( 1 ) (  105,349 ) ( 2 ) (  46,309 )  -  

8200 Net income    $ 104,218   5   $ 57,767   3   $ 352,937   4   $ 249,304   4  

 Other comprehensive income                               

 Items that are not reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss: 

  

                            

8349 income tax expenses (benefits) 

related to items 

 6(27) 

 $ 2   -   $ -   -   $ 495   -   $ -   -  

 Items that may be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss: 

  

                            

8361 Exchange differences on 

translation of foreign financial 

statements 

  

(  39,096 ) ( 2 )   13,365   -  (  20,279 )  -  (  39,917 ) ( 1 ) 

8300 Other comprehensive income 

(loss), net 

  

( $ 39,094 ) ( 2 )  $ 13,365   -  ( $ 19,784 )  -  ( $ 39,917 ) ( 1 ) 

8500 Total comprehensive income 

(loss) 

  

 $ 65,124   3   $ 71,132   3   $ 333,153   4   $ 209,387   3  

 Net income (loss) attributable to:                               

8610 Owners of parent company    $ 94,396   5   $ 57,640   3   $ 338,765   4   $ 252,700   4  

8620 Non-controlling interests     9,822   -    127   -    14,172   -  (  3,396 )  -  

 Total    $ 104,218   5   $ 57,767   3   $ 352,937   4   $ 249,304   4  

 Total comprehensive income 

(loss) attributable to: 

  

                            

8710 Owners of parent company    $ 55,302   3   $ 71,005   3   $ 318,981   4   $ 212,783   3  

8720 Non-controlling interests     9,822   -    127   -    14,172   -  (  3,396 )  -  

 Total    $ 65,124   3   $ 71,132   3   $ 333,153   4   $ 209,387   3  

                    

 Earnings per share  6(28)                 

9750 Basic    $ 0.70   $ 0.43   $ 2.50   $ 1.89  

9850 Diluted    $ 0.70   $ 0.43   $ 2.48   $ 1.88   



Advanced International Multitech Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

January 1 to September 30, 2018 and 2017 
(Reviewed Only, Not Audited in Accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in the Republic of China) 

Unit: In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars 
   E q u i t y  A t t r i b u t a b l e  t o  S h a r e h o l d e r s  o f  t h e  P a r e n t  C o m p a n y     
     C a p i t a l  s u r p l u s  R e t a i n e d  e a r n i n g s         

 

N o t e 

 

C a p i t a l  o f 
Common Shares 

 

S h a r e 
P r e m i u m 

 

C h a n g e s  i n 
O w n e r s h i p 
I n t e r e s t  i n 
S u b s id i a ri e s 

 

Employee Stock 
O p t i o n s 

 

O t h e r s 

 

L e g a l 
R e s e r v e 

 

S p e c i a l 
R e s e r v e 

 

Undistribut
ed Earnings 

 E x c h a n g e 
D i f f e r e n c e 
A r i s in g  fr o m 
Translation of 
F o r e i g n 
F i n a n c i a l 
S t a t e m e n t s 

 

T o t a l 

 

Non-controlling 
i n t e r e s t s 

 

T o t a l E q ui t y 
 

 

January 1, 2017 ~ September 30, 2017                                                  

Balance as of January 1, 2017    $ 1,333,757    $ 670,464    $ 16,480    $ 28,404    $ 18,432    $ 664,300    $ -    $ 650,101   ( $ 21,412 )   $ 3,360,526    $ 363,935    $ 3,724,461  

Net income    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    252,700    -    252,700   ( 3,396 )   249,304  

Other comprehensive income (loss)    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 39,917 )  ( 39,917 )   -   ( 39,917 ) 

Total comprehensive income (loss)    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    252,700   ( 39,917 )   212,783   ( 3,396 )   209,387  

Earnings appropriation and allocation 
for 2016: 

 
                                                

Provision of legal reserve    -    -    -    -    -    34,547    -   ( 34,547 )   -    -    -    -  

Provision of special reserve    -    -    -    -    -    -    21,412   ( 21,412 )   -    -    -    -  

Cash dividends for  common stocks 6(20)   -    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 173,388 )   -   ( 173,388 )   -   ( 173,388 ) 

Employee stock option written off    -    -    -   ( 1,801 )   1,801    -    -    -    -    -    -    -  

Share-based payment transaction 6(17)   19,370    69,402    -   ( 21,946 )   -    -    -    -    -    66,826    -    66,826  

Cash dividends distributed by 
subsidiaries 

 
  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 26,965 )  ( 26,965 ) 

Balance as of September 30, 2017    $ 1,353,127    $ 739,866    $ 16,480    $ 4,657    $ 20,233    $ 698,847    $ 21,412    $ 673,454   ( $ 61,329 )   $ 3,466,747    $ 333,574    $ 3,800,321  

January 1, 2018 ~ September 30, 2018                                                  

Balance as of January 1, 2018    $ 1,353,127    $ 739,866    $ 16,480    $ -    $ 24,890    $ 698,847    $ 21,412    $ 857,118   ( $ 65,616 )   $ 3,646,124    $ 341,272    $ 3,987,396  

Net income    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    338,765    -    338,765    14,172    352,937  

Other comprehensive income (loss)    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    495   ( 20,279 )  ( 19,784 )   -   ( 19,784 ) 

Total comprehensive income (loss)    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    339,260   ( 20,279 )   318,981    14,172    333,153  

Earnings appropriation and allocation 
for 2017: 

 
                                                

Provision of legal reserve    -    -    -    -    -    44,240    -   ( 44,240 )   -    -    -    -  

Provision of special reserve    -    -    -    -    -    -    44,204   ( 44,204 )   -    -    -    -  

Cash dividends for  common stocks 6(20)   -    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 351,813 )   -   ( 351,813 )   -   ( 351,813 ) 

Cash dividends distributed by 
subsidiaries 

 
  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   ( 11,235 )  ( 11,235 ) 

Balance as of September 30, 2018    $ 1,353,127    $ 739,866    $ 16,480    $ -    $ 24,890    $ 743,087    $ 65,616    $ 756,121   ( $ 85,895 )   $ 3,613,292    $ 344,209    $ 3,957,501    



Advanced International Multitech Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

January 1 to September 30, 2018 and 2017 
(Reviewed Only, Not Audited in Accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in the Republic 

of China) 
Unit: In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars 

  

Note 

 January 1 to 
September 30, 

2018 

   January 1 to 
September 30, 

2017  
             

 

Cash flows from operating activities            

Net profit before tax    $ 458,286    $ 295,613  

Adjustments:            

Income and expense item            

Depreciation  6(25)   228,904     247,244  

Amortization  6(25)   13,483     13,693  

Amortization of long-term rental prepayments 

(stated as amortization expense) 

 6 (11) (25) 

  1,282     1,275  

Expected credit impairment gain  12 (2) (  6,613 )    -  

Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts  12 (4)   -     17,540  

Net loss from financial assets and liabilities 

measured at FVTPL 

 6(24) 

  5,635     2,265  

Interest revenue  6(23) (  6,975 )  (  3,329 ) 

Interest expense     181     68  

Loss on disposal and retirement of property, plant 

and equipment 

 6(24) 

  698     2,699  

Reclassification of property, plant and equipment to 

expense 

  

  269     141  

Impairment loss on non-financial assets     2,390     4,310  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:            

Net changes in operating assets            

Financial assets at FVTPL   (  4,476 )    485  

Notes receivable   (  1,677 )    6,104  

Accounts receivable     676,040     894,283  

Other receivables     2,680   (  2,556 ) 

Inventories   (  189,735 )  (  24,567 ) 

Prepayments   (  31,372 )  (  24,873 ) 

Other current assets   (  10,416 )  (  4,858 ) 

Net changes in operating liabilities            

Financial liabilities held for trading     -     18  

Notes payable     1,062     621  

Accounts payable     49,360   (  300,597 ) 

Other payables   (  126,786 )  (  49,057 ) 

Other current liabilities     7,457   (  185 ) 

Accrued pension liability     10   (  7 ) 

Cash provided by operating activities     1,069,687     1,076,330  

Income tax paid for the current period   (  39,885 )  (  52,369 ) 

Net cash provided by operating activities     1,029,802     1,023,961  

 

(Continue to next page)



Advanced International Multitech Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

January 1 to September 30, 2018 and 2017 
(Reviewed Only, Not Audited in Accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in the Republic 

of China) 
Unit: In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars 

  

Note 

 January 1 to 
September 30, 

2018 

   January 1 to 
September 30, 

2017  
             

The attached Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements is an integral part of the consolidated 
financial statements, please refer to it as well. 

 
 

 Chairman: Hsi-Chien Cheng Manager: Hsi-Chien Cheng Chairman: Hsi-Chien Cheng 
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Cash flows from investing activities:            

Increase in investments accounted for using equity 

method 

  

( $ 5,101 )   $ -  

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  6(30) (  366,173 )  (  94,297 ) 

Increase in prepayment for business facilities   (  83,133 )  (  61,777 ) 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant, and 

equipment 

  

  163     3,841  

Increase in refundable deposits   (  817 )  (  2,820 ) 

Decrease in refundable deposits     1,821     2,737  

Acquisition of intangible assets  6(9) (  2,275 )  (  11,185 ) 

Increase in other non-current assets   (  1,356 )  (  6,715 ) 

Interest received     6,416     3,021  

Net cash used in investing activities   (  450,455 )  (  167,195 ) 

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities            

Increase in short-term loans     276,552     1,009,862  

Decrease in short-term loans   (  290,946 )  (  960,802 ) 

Increase in long-term loan     48,880     -  

Increase in deposits received     91     44  

Interest paid   (  165 )  (  68 ) 

Execution of employees stock option     -     66,826  

Cash dividends distributed  6(20) (  351,813 )  (  173,388 ) 

Cash dividends distributed by subsidiaries   (  11,235 )  (  26,965 ) 

Net cash used in financing activities   (  328,636 )  (  84,491 ) 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 

equivalents 

  

(  9,921 )  (  14,348 ) 



Advanced International Multitech Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

January 1 to September 30, 2018 and 2017 
(Reviewed Only, Not Audited in Accordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards in the Republic 

of China) 
Unit: In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars 

  

Note 

 January 1 to 
September 30, 

2018 

   January 1 to 
September 30, 

2017  
             

The attached Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements is an integral part of the consolidated 
financial statements, please refer to it as well. 

 
 

 Chairman: Hsi-Chien Cheng Manager: Hsi-Chien Cheng Chairman: Hsi-Chien Cheng 
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Increase in cash and cash equivalents for the current 

period 

  

  240,790     757,927  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period     989,078     730,522  

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period    $ 1,229,868    $ 1,488,449  
  

~14~ 



  

 

Advanced Internat ional Mult itech Co.,  Ltd.  and Subsidiar ies  

Notes to  the Conso lidated Financial Statements  

for the Third Quarter  Ended September 30, 2018 

(Reviewed Only, Not  Audited in Accordance with the Generally Accepted Audit ing 

Standards in the Republic o f China)  

Unit : In Thousands o f New Taiwan Dollars  

(Unless Otherwise Specified)  

 

(I) Company Pro file  

(1)  Established on July 20, 1987, Advanced Internat ional Mult itech  Co.,  Ltd.  (“the 

Company” hereinaft er) started operat ion in January 1988 under its former  

name as Advanced Composite Design Co.,  Ltd, with capita l in the amount  o f 

NT$ 45,000 thousand. The capital further  increased to  NT$ 187,170 thousand 

after the Company’s merger and acquisit ion of its subsidiar ies,  namely Dian 

Precision Cast ing Co.,  Ltd.  and Advanced Internat ional Co. Ltd. ,  on July 1,  

1998. As of September 30, 2018, the Company had an author ized capital in the 

amount  of NT$ 1,463,000 thousand ( including 5,000 thousand shares o f 

employee stock opt ion cert ificates and 10,000 thousand shares of convert ible 

corporate bonds),  and a paid- in cap ital in the amount  of NT$ 1,353,127 

thousand, represent ing 135,313 thousand shares with each share pr iced at  NT$ 

10. The Company and subsidiar ies are mainly engaged in manufactur ing,  

processing, t rading, import  and export of carbon fiber prepreg mater ials,  and 

carbon fiber products (e.g.  baseball bat ,  billiard st ick,  arrow target,  golf club 

shaft  and head, fishing tools,  b icycle and accessor ies),  as well as composit e 

mater ials,  namely carbon fiber fabr ics,  for aviat ion industry.  

(2)  The Company’s stocks have been t raded on the Taipei Exchange (“TPEx” 

hereinafter) since December 2002.  

(II) Approval Date and Procedures of the Financia l Statements  

The conso lidated financia l statements were released on November 8,  2018, after  

being approved by the Board of Directors.  

(III) Applicat ion of New and Amended  Standards and Interpretat ions  

(1)  Effects of the adopt ion of new and amended IFRSs endorsed by  the Financ ial 

Supervisory Commission (“FSC”):  

The fo llowing table summarizes the new, revised, and amended standards and 

int erpretat ions o f IFRSs endorsed by the FSC that  are applicable in 2018:  



  

 

 

The Group assessed the effects of adopt ing the aforement io ned standards and 

interpretat ions and found no significant  effects on the Group’s financial posit ion 

and financial performance.  

Effects of not  yet  applying the newly-announced and revised IFRSs endorsed by the 

FSC:  

The fo llowing table summarizes the new, revised, and amended standards and 

int erpretat ions o f IFRSs endorsed by the FSC that  are applicable in 2019:  

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

Effective Date by

International Accounting

Standards Board

Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions

(amendments to IFRS 2)

January 1, 2018

Applying IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’with IFRS 4‘Insurance

contracts’

January 1, 2018

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’
January 1, 2018

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or

joint venture (amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

To be determined by

International Accounting

Standards Board

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
January 1, 2018

Clarifications to IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers'

(amendments to IFRS 15)

January 1, 2018

Disclosure initiative (amendments to IAS 7)
January 1, 2017

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses

(amendments to IAS 12)

January 1, 2017

Transfers of investment property (amendments to IAS 40)
January 1, 2018

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle- Amendments to IAS

28,‘Investments in associates and joint ventures’

January 1, 2018

IFRIC 22, ‘Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’
January 1, 2018

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle- Amendments to

IFRS 1,‘First-time adoption of international financial reporting standards

’

January 1, 2018

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle- Amendments to

IFRS 12, ‘Disclosure of interests in other entities’

January 1, 2017



  

 

 

The Group assessed the effects of adopt ing the aforement ioned standards and 

int erpretat ions and found no significant effects on the Group’s finan cia l 

posit ion and financia l performance, except  for those stated below:  

IFRS 16 “Leases”  

IFRS 16  “Leases” supersedes IAS 17 “Leases” and its relevant  IFRIC 

int erpretat ions and SIC interpretat ions.  IFRS 16 requires that  a lessee 

recognize r ight -of -use assets and lease liabilit ies for all leases unless the lease 

is  less than 12 months or the under lying asset  has a low value. Account ing 

t reatment  under IFRS 16 for a lessor is substant ially unchanged, which allows 

a lessor to cont inue to classify leases as ei ther operat ing or finance, except  that  

addit ional disclosures are required.  

The Group has reported to  the Board of Directors in the first  quarter of 2018 

that  applying IFRS 16 has no significant  effects on the Group.  

The Group accounts for all leases to wh ich the Group is a lessee us ing IFRS 16 

“Leases” without restat ing the previous financial statements (hereina fter  

referred to  as the “modified ret rospect ive approach”) ; any effects ar is ing 

therefrom are adjusted to  January 1,  2019.  

  

Amendments to IFRS 9, ‘Prepayment features with negative

compensation’

Amendments to IAS 19, ‘Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement’ 

Amendments to IAS 28, ‘Long-term interests in associates and joint

ventures’

IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’ 

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle January 1, 2019 January 1, 2019

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

Effective Date by

International Accounting

Standards Board

January 1, 2021

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ January 1, 2019

January 1, 2019

January 1, 2021

January 1, 2019



  

 

Effects of IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC:  

The fo llowing table summar izes the new, amended, revised standards and 

int erpretat ion of IFRSs that  have been issued by IASB but  not  yet  endorsed by 

the FSC:  

 

The Group assessed the effects  of adopt ing  the aforem entioned standards and  

in terpreta t ions and  found no significant effects on the Group’s f inancial  posi t io n  

and  f inancial  performance.  

(IV)  Summar y o f Significant  Account ing Po licies  

Among the significant account ing policies, except for the compliance statement,  

preparat ion basis, consolidated basis and addit ion which are stated below, the rest are 

the same to Note 4 of the 2017 consolidated financial statements. Unless otherwise 

stated, the policies shall be applicable to all report ing periods presented.  

(1)  Statement  of compliance  

1.  The conso lidated financia l statements are prepared in accordance with the 

Regulat ions Governing the Preparat ion of Financia l Reports by Secur it ie s 

Issuers,  and the FSC endorsed IAS 34 "Inter im Financial Report ing".  

2.  These conso lidated financial statements shall be read together with the 2017 

conso lidated financia l statements.  

Bas is o f Preparat ion 

1.  Except  for the fo llowing significant  items, these conso lidated financia l 

statements have been prepared under the histor ica l cost  convent ion:  

(1) Financia l assets and liabilit ies measured at  FVTPL ( including 

der ivat ives).  

(2) Financial assets measured at  FVTOCI.  

(3) Defined benefit  liabilit y is der ived from ret irement  plan assets less the 

present  value o f net  defined benefit  obligat ion.  

2.  Cr it ical account ing est imates are required in prepar ing a set  of financia l 

statements in compliance with the Internat ional Financial Report ing 

Standards (IFRS), Internat ional Account ing Standards (IAS), IFRIC 

Interpretat ions,  and SIC Interpretat ions  (collect ively referred to as “IFRSs”) .  

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, ‘Sale or contribution of assets To be determined by

between an investor and its associate or joint venture’ International Accounting

Standards Board

IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2021

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

Effective Date by

International Accounting

Standards Board



  

 

Management  judgments are also required in the process of applying the 

Group’s account ing po licies.  For items that  are highly judgmental,  complex,  

or related to significant  assumpt ions and est imates of the conso lidate d 

financial statements,  please refer to Note 5.  

3.  In the init ia l applicat ion o f IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 as at  January 1,  2018, the 

Group adopts the modified ret rospect ive approach, by which the t ransit iona l 

differences generated do not  have significant  impact  on the retained 

earnings and other equit y as at  January 1,  2018; therefore,  the Group does 

not  restate the financia l statements and notes to  the financial statements for  

the nine-month per iods ended September 30, 2017. The financ ial statement s 

for the third quarter  ended September 30, 2017 were prepared in accordance 

with Internat ional Account ing Standards 39 (“IAS39” hereinaft er),  

Internat ional Account ing Standards 11 (“IAS 11”),  Internat ional Account ing 

Standards (“IAS 18”),  and their related IFRIC Interp retat ions and SIC 

int erpretat ions.  For cr it ical account ing polic ies and major account ing it ems,  

please refer to Note 12 (4) and (5) for details .  

Bas is o f Conso lidat ion 

1.Preparat ion Pr inciples for Conso lidated Financia l Statements:  

The pr incip les fo llowed in prepar ing the conso lidated financial statement s 

are the same as those in 2017.  

2.  Subsid iar ies that  are conso lidated into the conso lidated financ ial statements:  



  

 

 

Note 1: The financial statements o f such insignificant  subsidiar ies for the 

nine-month per iods ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, are not  

reviewed by an independent  auditor.  

Note 2: Such company had been liquidated in Ju ly 2017.  

Note 3: Such company had been liquidated in June 2017.  

3.  Subsidiar ies that  are not conso lidated into the conso lidated financia l 

statements:  None.  

4.  Different  account ing and ad justments adopted by subsid iar ies in t he 

account ing per iod: None.  

5.  Significant  rest r ict ions: None.  

6.  Informat ion about  subsid iar ies in which the Group has significant  

Investor Subsidiary

Main Business

Activities
September 30,

2018

December

31,2017

September 30,

2017

Advanced

International

Multitech Co., Ltd

Advanced International

Multitech (BVI) Co., Ltd.
Equity investment 100 100 100

Advanced

International

Multitech Co., Ltd

Advanced Group

International (BVI) Co.,

Ltd.

Equity investment 100 100 100

Advanced

International

Multitech Co., Ltd

Advanced International

Multitech (VN)

Corporation Ltd.

Sale of golf club heads,

golf balls, shafts
100 100 100

Advanced

International

Multitech Co., Ltd

Launch Technologies Co.,

LTD.

Manufacture of golf

ball
55.93 55.93 55.93

Advanced Group

International (BVI)

Co., Ltd.

ADVANCED

SPORTING GOODS

(DONGGUAN) CO.,

LTD.

Manufacture and sale

of Prepreg Carbon

Fiber

100 100 100

Advanced

International

Multitech (BVI)

Co., Ltd.

ADVANCED

SPORTING GOODS

(SHATIAN,

DONGGUAN) CO., LTD

Manufacture and sale

of Prepreg Carbon

Fiber

100 100 100

Advanced

International

Multitech Co., Ltd

FOO-GUO International

Limited
Equity investment - - -

FOO-GUO

International

Limited

FOOGUO

SPORTS

(DONGGUAN)

CO., LTD

Manufacture

and sale of

sports goods
- - -

Ownership (%)



  

 

non-controlling int erests:  

As o f September 30, 2018, December 31, 2017 and September 30, 2017, the 

Group’s non-controlling int erests totaled NT$ 344,209 thousand, NT$ 

341,272 thousand, and NT$ 333,574 thousand. Stated below is the 

informat ion in respect  of the Group’s significant  non-controlling int erest s 

and the corresponding subsidiar ies:  

 

Summar y o f the financial informat ion o f subsidiar ies is as fo llows:  

Balance Sheets 

 

  

Name of subsidiary

Principal place of

business
Amount Ownership (%) Amount Ownership (%) Amount Ownership (%)

Launch

Technologies

Co., LTD.

Taiwan 334,209  44.07 341,272  44.07 333,574  44.07

September 30, 2017

Non-controlling interest

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017 September 30, 2017

Current assets $498,245 $480,455 $470,936

Non-current assets 622,352               536,721            526,119                

Current liabilities (290,366) (242,547) (240,118)

Non-current liabilities (49,190) (251) (29)

Total net assets $781,041 $774,378 $756,908

Launch Technologies Co., LTD



  

 

 

Statements o f Comprehensive Income  

 

Statements o f Cash Flows  

 

July 1- September 30 , 2018 July 1- September 30 , 2017

Revenue $400,683 $342,918

Profit before income tax 25,869 373

Income tax expense (3,582) (84)

Profit for the year 22,287 289

-                                               -                                               

$22,287 $289

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017

Revenue $1,126,211 $763,809

Profit (loss) before income tax 35,007 (5,246)

Income tax expense (2,849) (2,460)

Profit (loss) for the year 32,158 (7,706)

-                                               -                                               

$32,158 ($7,706)

Launch Technologies Co., LTD

Other comprehensive (loss)

income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Launch Technologies Co., LTD

Other comprehensive (loss)

income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

for the year

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017

$133,064 $45,513

Net cash used in investing activities (143,581) (58,195)

15,844 (39,688)

5,327 (52,370)

$49,534 $79,716

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 54,861 27,346

Launch Technologies Co., LTD

Increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents,

beginning of year

Net cash provided (used in)

by financing activities

Net cash provided by

operating activities



  

 

Financia l assets at  FVTPL 

Applicable for the years beginning on or after January 1,  2018  

1.  Financia l assets that  are neither measured at  amort ized cost  nor measured at  

FVTOCI. 

2.  On a regular way purchase or sale basis,  financia l assets at  FVTPL are 

recognized and derecognized using set t lement  date account ing.  

3.  Financia l assets at  FVTPL are init ially recognized at  fair value with related 

t ransact ion costs recognized in pro fit  or loss,  and subsequ ent ly measured at  

fair value with related gains or losses recognized in pro fit  or loss.  

4.  The Group recognizes dividends income when the r ights of shareho lders to  

receive payment  are established, provided that  the economic benefit s related 

to  such d ividends are probable to  flow to the Group and the amount  of such 

benefit s can be reliably measured.  

Financia l assets measured at  FVTOCI  

1. Refers to  the irrevocable elect ion made at  init ia l recognit ion that  allows the 

Group to present  fa ir value changes o f equity investment  not  held for t rading 

in other comprehensive income; or debt  investment  that  meets all the cr iter ia  

simultaneously:  

(1) Financia l assets held within a business model o f which the object ive o f 

ho lding is to  collect  the contractual cash flows and to sell.  

(2) The cash flows on specific  dates that  are generated from the contractua l 

terms o f the financia l assets are so lely payments o f the pr inc iple and 

int erest  on the pr inciple amount  outstanding.  

2.  On a regular way purchase or sale basis,  financi a l assets measured at  

FVTOCI are recognized and derecognized using set t lement  date account ing.  

3.  Financia l assets measured at  FVTOCI are init ially measured at  fair value 

plus t ransact ion costs and subsequent ly measured at  fair value with fair  

value changes in equity inst ruments recognized in other comprehensive 

income. Upon derecognit ion, the cumulat ive gains or losses previously 

recognized in other comprehensive income shall not  be reclassified to  profit  

or loss,  but  to be t ransferred to retained earnings .  The Group recognizes 

dividends income when the r ights o f shareho lders to  receive payment  are 

established, provided that  the economic benefit s related to  such dividends 

are probable to  flow to the Group and the amount  of such benefits  can be 

reliably measured.  

Accounts receivable s and notes receivables  

1.  Accounts receivables and notes receivables are receivables and notes o f 

which the contractual r ight  to  considerat ion for goods so ld or services 

rendered is uncondit ional.  

2.  However,  short -term accounts/notes receivables without  interest  payment ,  

given insignificant  effects of their discount ing, are subsequent ly measured 

at  the invo ice pr ice.  



  

 

Investments accounted for using equity method  

1.  Associates are all ent it ies over which the Group has significant  influence 

but  not  contro l.  In general,  it  is  presumed that  the investor has significant  

influence, if an investor ho lds,  direct ly or indirect ly 20% or more of the 

vot ing power of t he investee.  Investments in associates are accounted fo r  

using the equity method and are init ia lly recognized at  cost .  

2.  The Group’s share o f its associates’ post -acquisit ion profits or losses is  

recognized in pro fit  or loss,  and it s share of post -acquis it ion movements in  

other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehe nsive income.  

When the Group’s share o f lo sses in an associate equals or exceeds it s  

int erest  in the associate ( including any other unsecured receivables),  the 

Group does not recognize further losses,  unless it  has incurred legal or  

construct ive obligat ions or made payments on behalf o f the associate.  

3.  Any changes in equity o f associates are recognized as “Capit al Reserve” by 

the Group in proport ion to its shareho lding percentage, provided that  such 

changes are not  att ributable to  profit  or loss,  or to  ot her comprehensive 

income, or affect  the Group’s shareho lding percentage.  

4.  Unrealized gains on t ransact ions between the Group and its associates are 

eliminated to  the extent  of the Group’s int erest  in the associates.  Unrealized 

losses are also eliminated unless the t ransact ion provides evidence o f an 

impair ment  of the asset  t ransferred. Account ing po lic ies of associates are 

adjusted, when necessary, to  remain consistent  with those o f the Group.  

5.  When the Group disposes its investment  in an associate and loses significant  

influence over this associate,  the account ing t reatment  for amounts 

previous ly recognized in other comprehensive income in relat ion to  the 

associate are the same as the one required if the relevant  assets or liabilit ie s 

were direct ly disposed o f.  That  is,  if gain/ loss previously recognized in  

other comprehensive income will be reclassified to profit  or loss upon 

disposal o f relevant  assets or liabilit ies,  such gain/ loss will be reclassified 

from equity to  profit  or loss when the Group lose s significant  influence over  

the associate.  I f it  st ill retains significant  influence over this associate,  then 

the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in 

relat ion to the associate are reclassified to  profit  or loss proport ionately in  

accordance with the aforement ioned approach.  

Impairments o f Financial Assets  

The Group measures the loss allowance for financial assets measured at  

amort ized cost  after taking into account  all reasonable and proving informat ion 

( including foreseeing informat ion) at  each balance sheet  date; where the credit  

r isk has not  significant ly increased since init ia l recognit ion, the lo ss allowance 

is measured at  the 12-month expected credit  losses; where the credit  r isk has 

increased significant ly since init ia l recognit ion, the loss allowance is 

measured at  full lifet ime expected credit  lo sses; and where they are account s 

receivables or contract  assets that  do not comprise any significant  financing 

components,  the loss allowance is measured at  full lifet ime expecte d cred it  

lo sses.  



  

 

Borrowings 

Borrowings are short -term and long-term loans borrowed from banks.  

Borrowings are recognized init ially at  fair value,  net  of t ransact ion costs 

incurred. Subsequent ly,  borrowing expenses are recognized in profit  or loss 

based on the difference amounts between the proceeds (net  of any t ransact io n 

costs) and the redempt ion value that  are amort ized over the lives o f borrowings 
using the effect ive int erest  method.  

Notes payables and accounts payables  

1.  These refer to  the debts incurr ed by purchase o f mater ials,  goods, or 

services on credit ,  and the notes payables incurred by both operat ing and 
non-operat ing act ivit ies.  

2.  However,  short -term accounts/notes payables without  interest  payment ,  

given insignificant  effects of their discount ing, are subsequent ly measured 
at  the invo ice pr ice.  

Financia l liabilit ies measured at  FVTPL  

1. Financia l liabilit ies at  FVTPL refer to  financial liabilit ies designated 

upon init ial recognit ion to  be measured at  fair value through pro fit  or loss.  

Financia l liabilit ies that  meet  one of the following cr iter ia are designated 

to  be measured at  FVTPL on init ia l recognit ion:  

(1) Hybr id (combined) contracts; or  

(2) They eliminate or significant ly reduce a measurement  or recognit ion 

inconsistency; or  

(3) They are  managed  and  their  performance is evaluated  on a fair  value 

basis in accordance with a documented r isk  management policy.  

2.  Financial assets at  FVTPL are init ially recognized at  fair value wit h 

related t ransact ion costs recognized in profit  or loss,  and subsequent ly 

measured at  fair value with related gains or losses recognized in pro fit  or 

lo ss.  

Non-hedging Der ivat ives  

Non-hedging der ivat ives are init ially measured at  the fa ir value of the date 

when contracts are executed and presented as financial assets or liabilit ies 

measured at  FVTPL. Subsequent ly,  they are measured at  fair value wit h 

gains or losses recognized in pro fit  or loss.  

Employee benefits  

The pension cost  in the inter im per iod is based on the pension cost  rat io  

decided upon actuat ion at  the closing day o f previous FY, from beginning 

unt il end o f the year.  I f,  after the closing date,  there incurs mater ial market  

changes,  reassessment  reduct ion, or other mater ial one -t ime event ,  the 

defined benefit  plans are to  be ad justed, and relevant  informat ion is to  be 
disclosed in accordance with the aforement ioned po licies.   

Income tax 

1.  Income tax expense in the inter im is computed by applying the est imated 

average effect ive tax rate in annual term to the pre -tax pro fit  or loss in t he 



  

 

int er im, and is disclosed in accordance with the afore -ment ioned po licies.  

2.  I f tax rate changes occur in the inter im, the Group recognizes all effect s 

of changes to  the per iod when such changes accrue; for income tax 

att ributable to  items not  included in profit  or los s,  effects of changes are 

recognized in other comprehens ive income or equity; and for income tax 

related to items included in profit  or loss,  effects of changes are 
recognized in profit  or loss.  

Revenue recognit ion 

1.  The Group manufactures and sells  consu mer related products and 

recognizes sales revenue when the control o f products is passed to 

customers,  i.e.  when products are delivered to customers and the Group 

doesn’t  have further performance obligat ions that  might  affect  the 

acceptance of goods by customers.  Goods are deemed delivered when the 

r isk of delivery, obso lescence and loss is t ransferred to customers and 

customers has accepted the goods in accordance with the contractua l 

terms, or when any object ive evidence suggests that  all cr iter ia for  
acceptance have been sat isfied.  

2.  Sales revenue is recognized at  the contract  pr ice,  net  of business tax,  and 

sales returns,  discounts and allowances.  The payment  terms o f most  sales 

t ransact ion are usually due within 60 ~ 90 days after the shipping date.  

Since the t ime interval between when the commit ted goods or services are 

t ransferred to customers and when customers pay is shorter than one year,  

the Group does not  adjust  the t ransact ion pr ice to  reflect  the t ime value o f 

money.  

3.  The Group offers customers allowances for defect ive products so ld,  and 

est imates discounts on a histor ical bas is.  A sales allowance is provided 

when sales are recognized.  

4.  Accounts receivable is recognized when goods are delivered to  customers 

because at  which t ime the Group’s r ight  to  the considerat ion for contracts 

from customers is uncondit ional,  except  for passage o f t ime.  

(V)  The Pr imary Sources o f Uncertaint ies in Major Account ing Judgments,  Est imates,  

and Assumpt ions  

There is no mater ial changes in the per iod.  



  

 

(VI)  Descr ipt ions of Major Account ing Subjects  

(1)  Cash and cash equ ivalents  

 

1.  The Group deals with financia l inst itut ions having high credit  qualit y.  The 

Group also deals with var ious financia l inst itut ions in order that  credit  risks 

can be diversified. Therefore,  the expected r isk o f default  is pret ty low.  

2.  No cash or its equ ivalents were pledged as co llateral by the Group.  

Financia l assets at  FVTPL 

 

1.  Financia l assets measured at  FVTPL that  are recognized in profit  or loss are 

detailed as fo llows:  

 

  

September 30,

2018

December

31,2017

September 30,

2017

Cash on hand and revolving funds $1,307 $1,021 $720

Checking accounts and demand deposits 706,639           341,617            689,645          

Cash equivalents - Time deposits 369,547 557,310 798,084

Cash equivalents 152,375 89,130 -                 

Total $1,229,868 $989,078 $1,488,449

September 30,

2018

Current items:

Financial assets held for trading

   Non-hedging derivatives $212

   Valuation adjustment of financial assets held for trading -                   

$212

Items

July 1- September 30,

2018

January 1- September 30 ,

2017

Financial assets held for trading

   Non-hedging derivatives

   Valuation adjustment of financial assets held for trading ($1,932) ($539)



  

 

2.  B elo w s t at es  t h e Gr oup ’s  e ng ag e m e nt  i n  t r ans a ct io ns  an d  con t r act s  o f  f i n an ci al  d e r iv at iv es  t hat  do  no t  a pp ly  h ed ge  a c co un t i ng :  

 

The Group entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to  sell US 

dollars in order to  hedge the r isk ar is ing from purchase and sales of goo ds 

However,  such t ransact ions did not  apply hedge account ing.  

3.  For informat ion on the credit  risks of financial assets measured at  FVTPL ,  

please refer to Note 12 (2).  

4.  For financia l assets measured at  FVTPL as at  December 31, 2017 and 

September 30, 2017, please refer to  Note 12 (4) for details.  

Financia l assets measured at  FVTOCI  

 

1.  The Group elects to  classify st rategic equity investments as financ ial asset s 

measured at  FVTOCI. The fair value of such investments as at  September 30,  

2018 totaled NT$ 642 thousand.  

2.  No financ ial asset  measured at  FVTOCI was pledged by The Group as 

co llateral.  

3.  For informat ion on the credit  r isk o f financial assets measured at  FVTOCI,  

please refer to Note 12 (2).  

4.  For financial assets carr ied at  cost  as at  December 31,  2017 and September  

30, 2017, please refer to  Note 12 (4) for details.  

Notes Receivables and Accounts Receivables  

 

Derivative instruments

Contract amount

(notional principal)
Contract period

Current items:

Forward foreign exchange contracts
 USD   1,609 2018.9.6~2018.12.26

September 30, 2018

September 30, 2018

Non-current items:

Unlisted stocks $55

Items

September 30, 2018 December 31,2017 September 30, 2017

Notes receivable $7,657 $5,980 $4,153

Accounts receivable $1,604,188 $2,298,260 $1,370,154

-                           (923) (1,021)

(2,007) (8,620) (28,524)

$1,602,181 $2,288,717 $1,340,609

Less: allowance for sales

returns and discounts

Less: allowance for bad debts



  

 

1.  1. Aging analysis o f accounts receivable and notes receivable is stated as 

fo llows:  

 

The above aging analys is is  based on the number of days past  due.  

2.  There is no accounts receivable pledged as co llateral by The Group.  

3.  The amounts that  best  represent  the maximum credit  r isk exposure o f t he 

Group’s accounts receivables as at  September 30, 2018, December 31, 2017 

and September 30, 2017 without taking account  of any co llateral held or 

other credit  enhancements were NT$ 1,602,181 thousand, NT$ 2,288,717 

thousand, and NT$ 1,340,609 thousand.  

4.  For credit  r isk o f accounts receivables and notes receivables,  please refer to  

Note 12 (2). 

Inventory 

 

Accounts receivable Notes receivable Accounts receivable Notes receivable

Not overdue $1,456,411 $7,657 $2,188,790 $5,980

Up to 30 days 119,815 -                    70,282 -                    

31 to 90 days 27,076 -                    26,480 -                    

757 -                    6,095 -                    

Over 181 days 129 -                    6,613 -                    

$1,604,188 $7,657 $2,298,260 $5,980

Accounts receivable Notes receivable

Not overdue $1,250,152 $4,153

Up to 30 days 44,710 -                    

31 to 90 days 29,856 -                    

32,238 -                    

Over 181 days 13,198 -                    

$1,370,154 $4,153

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017

September 30, 2017

91 to 180 days

91 to 180 days

Cost Allowancefor valuation loss Book value

Raw materials 663,587$                    ($23,731) 639,856$                  

Work in process 343,567 (3,898) 339,669

Finished goods 654,803 (22,439) 632,364

Inventory in transit 65,962 -                            65,962

1,727,919$                 ($50,068) 1,677,851$               

September 30, 2018



  

 

 

 

The Group’s inventory cost  recognized as an expense for the current  per iod:  

 

 

 

A decrease in cost  to  sell was recognized due to  the recovery o f t he net  

realizable value o f inventories contr ibuted by the well -performed de-stocks and 

ret irement  of some inventory as at  the per iod between July 1 and September 30,  
2017 and the per iods between January 1 and September 30, 2018 and 2017.  

Cost Allowancefor valuation loss Book value

Raw materials 625,828$                    ($30,972) 594,856$                  

Work in process 326,526 (4,994) 321,532

Finished goods 554,032 (35,418) 518,614

Inventory in transit 64,436 -                            64,436

1,570,822$                 ($71,384) 1,499,438$               

December 31, 2017

Cost Allowancefor valuation loss Book value

Raw materials 597,312$                    ($29,989) 567,323$                  

Work in process 242,168 (2,410) 239,758

Finished goods 509,803 (37,232) 472,571

Inventory in transit 24,758 -                            24,758

1,374,041$                 ($69,631) 1,304,410$               

September 30, 2017

July 1- September 30,

2018

July 1- September 30,

2017

Cost of inventories sold $2,006,161 $1,822,703

Gain on reversal of decline in market value 3,113 (1,696)

Loss from sale of scraps 2,410 3,148                        

Others (1,103) 732

$2,010,581 $1,824,887

January 1- September

30 , 2018

January 1- September

30 , 2017

Cost of inventories sold $6,704,153 $6,085,572

Gain on reversal of decline in market value (21,231) (1,817)

Loss from sale of scraps 10,278 4,438                         

Others (2,977) 732

$6,690,223 $6,088,925



  

 

Prepayments  

 

Investments accounted for using equity method  

 

1.  As at  September 30, 2018, the Group does not  have any si gnificant  

associates.  

2. The carrying amount  and operat ing results of the Group’s individually 

insignificant  associates are summarized as fo llows:  

As of September 30, 2018, the carrying amount  of the Group’s Individually 

insignificant  associates was NT$ 5,101 thousand.  

Property,  plant  and equipment  

September 30, 2018 December 31,2017 September 30, 2017

Prepaid sales tax $65,764 $79,739 $47,244

Prepaid expenses 42,270                        22,269                      38,423                       

Overpaid sales tax 26,652 20,206 18,258

Prepayment for purchases 20,496 3,887 13,859

$155,182 $126,101 $117,784

September 30, 2018

BEIJING MINGDA TITANIUM TECHNOLOGY CO, LTD. $665

BAOJI ZATECH MATERIAL CO., LTD. 4,436

5,101



  

 

 

 

  

At January 1, 2018 Additions Disposals Reclassifications Net exchange differences At September 30, 2018

Land 162,544$               -$                            -$             -$                 -$                                162,544$                       

Buildings 1,236,013              13,088                         (48,994) 4,449                (7,261) 1,197,295

Machinery and equipment 1,437,163 123,693                       (134,373) 57,854 (7,468) 1,476,869Utility

equipment 279,468                 1,354 (22,945) (910) (3,738) 253,229

Transportation equipment 6,824 98                                -               -                   (58) 6,864

Office equipment 55,404                   2,481 (3,606) 133                   (563) 53,849

Others 411,896 36,681                         (45,626) 4,439 (4,362) 403,028

Construction in progress 5,079 185,357 -               (720) 57                                    189,773

3,594,391$            $362,752 ($255,544) $65,245 ($23,393) $3,743,451

At January 1, 2018 Depreciation Expenses Disposals Reclassifications Net exchange differences At September 30, 2018

Buildings 588,615$               54,242$                       ($48,816) 2,267$              ($7,011) 589,297$                       

Machinery and equipment 1,018,127 116,714                       (133,796) (1,361) (7,902) 991,782

Utility equipment
 169,846                 15,039 (22,908) (1,001) (2,521) 158,455

Transportation equipment 4,592 769                              -               -                   (55) 5,306

Office equipment 35,910                   5,055 (3,606) -                   (552) 36,807

Others 296,491 39,475                         (45,557) 95                     (3,667) 286,837

2,113,581$            $231,294 ($254,683) -$                 ($21,708) $2,068,484

Total 1,480,810$            1,674,967$                    

Name of Assets

January 1- September 30 , 2018Cost

Name of Assets

Accumulated depreciation January 1- September 30 , 2018

September 30, 2018 December 31,2017 September 30, 2017

Land $162,544 $162,544 $162,544

Buildings 607,998                       647,398                           664,084                          

Machinery and equipment 485,087 419,036 419,862Utility

equipment 94,774 109,622 111,447

Transportation equipment 1,558 2,232 2,159

Office equipment 17,042 19,494 19,278

Others 116,191 115,405 118,776

Construction in progress 189773 5079 1664

$1,674,967 $1,480,810 $1,499,814



  

 

 

1.  Capita lized amount  and interest  range of borrowing costs at tributable to  

property,  plant  and equipment:  

 

2.  Significant  components o f the Group’s bu ildings and st ructures inc lude 

build ings,  and auxiliary construct ion and air condit ioning engineer ing,  

which are respect ively appreciated over the per iods o f 41 - 56 years and 10 -  

26 years.  

3.  For the informat ion about  property,  plant  and equipment  pledged as 

co llateral,  please see Note 8 for details  

 

 

(Blank Below)  

  

At January 1, 2017 Additions Disposals Reclassifications Net exchange differences At September 30, 2017

Land 162,544$               -$                            -$         -$                 -$                                162,544$                      

Buildings 1,274,271              8,589                           (11,384) 3,297 (21,682) 1,253,091

Machinery and equipment 1,568,703 57,405                         (152,841) 32,321 (22,008) 1,483,580

Utility equipment
 307,993                 3,781 (30,856) (320) (3,590) 277,008

Transportation equipment 6,075 460                              -           -                   (30) 6,505

Office equipment 52,895                   8,194 (1,128) 1,353                (896) 60,418

Others 413,223 39,219                         (34,681) 2,589 (5,837) 414,513

Construction in progress 4,297 746 -           (3,362) (17) 1,664

3,790,001$            $118,394 ($230,890) $35,878 ($54,060) $3,659,323

At January 1, 2017 Depreciation Expenses Disposals Reclassifications Net exchange differences At September 30, 2017

Buildings 548,230$               59,407$                       ($11,305) 383$                 ($7,708) 589,007$                      

Machinery and equipment 1,098,254 127,610                       (146,530) (120) (15,496) 1,063,718

Utility equipment
 182,199                 16,265 (30,856) (383) (1,664) 165,561

Transportation equipment 3,545 820                              -           -                   (19) 4,346

Office equipment 37,355                   5,422 (1,128) 120                   (629) 41,140

Others 292,488 42,030                         (34,531) -                   (4,250) 295,737

2,162,071$            $251,554 ($224,350) -$                 ($29,766) $2,159,509

Total 1,627,930$            1,499,814$                   

Name of Assets

Cost January 1- September 30 , 2017

Name of Assets

Accumulated depreciation January 1- June 30 , 2017

January 1- September 30 ,

2018

January 1- September 30 ,

2017

Amount capitalised 8,452$                             30$                                  

Range of the interest rates for
 capitalisation
 0.9%~2.3% 1.26%~1.71%



  

 

 

Intangible a ssets 

 

 

  

Technical skill Computer Software Total

At January 1, 2018

Cost 13,000$        25,872$                           38,872$                      

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
 (13,000) (7,353) (20,353)

-$             18,519$                           18,519$                      

2018

At January 1 -$             18,519$                           18,519$                      

Additions－acquired separately -               2,275                               2,275                          

Cost reduce (13,000) (3,237) (16,237)

Reclassifications -               100 100

Amortisation -               (6,244) (6,244)

Reduce in accumulated amortization 13,000          3,237                               16,237                        

At September 30 -$             14,650$                           14,650$                      

At September 30, 2018

Cost -$             25,010$                           25,010$                      

-               (10,360) (10,360)

-$             14,650$                           14,650$                      

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Technical skill Computer Software Others Total

At January 1, 2017

Cost 14,500$                29,705$                  65,500$                   109,705$        

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
 (12,311) (22,226) (65,500) (100,037)

2,189$                  7,479$                    -$                         9,668$            

2017

At January 1
2,189$                  7,479$                    -$                         9,668$            

Additions－acquired separately -                        11,185                    -                           11,185            

Cost reduce -                        (15,838) (65,500) (81,338)

Amortisation (1,970) (3,781) -                           (5,751)

Reduce in accumulated amortization -                        15,838                    65,500                     81,338            

At Septembere 30 219$                     14,883$                  -$                         15,102$          

At September 30, 2017

Cost 13,000$                25,052$                  -$                         38,052$          

(12,781) (10,169) -                           (22,950)

219$                     14,883$                  -$                         15,102$          

Accumulated amortisation and impairment



  

 

 

Amort izat ion of intangible assets is detailed as below:  

 

Impairment  o f non-financia l assets  

1.  For the three-month and nine-month per iods ended September 30, 2018 and 

2017, the Group recognized impairment  losses in the amount  of NT$ 2,390 

thousand, NT$ 4,310 thousand, NT$ 2,390 thousand, and NT$ 4,310 

thousand, the details  o f which are stated as fo llows:  

 

July 1- September 30, 2018 July 1- September 30, 2017

Operating costs 388$                                 164$                                  

Administrative expenses 912 711

Research and development expenses 719 1,059

2,019$                              1,934$                               

January 1- September 30 ,

2018

January 1- September 30 ,

2017

Operating costs 1,362$                              518$                                  

Administrative expenses 2,634 2,374

Research and development expenses 2,248 2,859

6,244$                              5,751$                               

Recognised in profit or

loss

Recognised in other

comprehensive

income

Recognised in profit or

loss

Recognised in other

comprehensive

income

Impairment loss－Buildings 1,991$                        -$                       2,967$                        -$                      

Impairment loss－machinery 199 -                         916 -                        

Impairment loss－Utility equipment 167 -                         -                              -                        

Impairment loss－Others 33 -                         427                             -                        

2,390$                        -$                       4,310$                        -$                      

Recognised in profit or

loss

Recognised in other

comprehensive

income

Recognised in profit or

loss

Recognised in other

comprehensive

income

Impairment loss－Buildings 1,991$                        -$                       2,967$                        -$                      

Impairment loss－machinery 199 -                         916 -                        

Impairment loss－Utility equipment 167 -                         -                              -                        

Impairment loss－Others 33 -                         427 -                        

2,390$                        -$                       4,310$                        -$                      

July 1- September 30, 2018 July 1- September 30, 2017

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017



  

 

2. Disclosure of the aforement ioned impairment  loss by segments is detailed as 
fo llows:  

 

Long-term prepaid rent  (presented as “other non-current  assets -  others”)  

For the three-month and nine-month per iods ended September 30, 2018 and 

2017, the Group recognized rental expenses in the amount  of NT$ 426 

thousand, NT$ 426 thousand, NT$ 1,282 thousand, and NT$ 1,275 thousa nd.  

 

Short -term loan  

 

Note: For the names and amounts of collateral for the aforement ioned 

short -term loans,  please refer to  Note 8 - Pledged Assets.  

Financia l liabilit ies at  FVTPL 

1. Financia l liabilit ies measured at  FVTPL that  are recognized in pro fit  o r 

lo ss

 are detailed as fo llows:  

2.  The Group entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to  sell US 

dollars in order to  hedge the r isk ar ising from purchase and sales of goods 

However,  such t ransact ions did not  apply hedge account ing.  

3.  For financial liabilit ies measured at  FVTPL as at  September 30, 2017 ,  

please refer to Note 12 (4) for details.  

4.  December 31, 2017: None.  

September 30, 2018 December 31,2017 September 30, 2017

Land use right 34,014$                34,284$                  35,041$                   

Type of loans September 30, 2018 Interest rate range

Loans from letter of credits 76,060$                       -

Type of loans December 31, 2017 Interest rate range

Loans from letter of credits 54,450$                       1.26%~1.27%

Unsecured loans 36,004                         -

90,454$                       

Type of loans September 30, 2017 Interest rate range

Loans from letter of credits 21,500$                       1.26%

Unsecured loans 67,896                         -

89,396$                       

July 1- September 30,

2018

January 1- September 30 ,

2018

Financial liabilities held for trading $565 ($5,096)



  

 

Other payables  

 

Long-term loans  

 
December 31, 2017 and September 30, 2017: None.  

For co llateral aga inst  the said long-term loans,  please refer to  Note 8 

Pledged Assets.  

Pensions 

1.  (1) In compliance with the requirement s set  forth in the Labor Standards 

Law, the Company has st ipulated a defined benefit  pension plan,  

which is applicable to  the years o f service rendered by regul ar  

employees pr ior to , and aft er ( if emplo yees elect  to  cont inue to  apply 

the Labor Standards Law), the implementat ion of the Labor Pension 

Act  on July 1,  2005. Pension payments for employees qualified for the 

aforement ioned ret irement  cr iter ia are calcula ted in accordance wit h 

the years o f service rendered and the average salar ies or wages o f the 

last  6 months pr ior to ret irement .  Two bases are given for each ful l 

year of service over the first  15 years,  and one base is given for an 

addit ional year o f serv ice thereafter,  provided that  the total bases do 

not  exceed forty- five (45).  The Company contributes on a monthly 

basis 2% of the total salary (wages) as pension fund, which is  

deposited in a designated account  with the Bank o f Taiwan under the 

name o f the Supervisory Commit tee of Workers’ Ret irement  Fund.  

Pr ior to the end o f each annual per iod, the Company assesses the 

September 30, 2018 December 31,2017 September 30, 2017

Awards and salaries payable $357,876 $381,366 $269,526

Payable for processing charge 251,748 249,241 204,562

Payables for employee’

sremuneration and directors’ and

supervisors’ remuneration

42,444 44,783 33,249

34,198 37,619 43,400

Others 240,253 348,630 330,520

$926,519 $1,061,639 $881,257

Payables for equipment

Type of loans Loan period Interest rate range Collateral September 30, 2018

Long-term bank

borrowings

Secured borrowings 2018/6-2023/6 1.395% Machinery and equipment 18,880$                

Secured borrowings 2018/7-2025/7 1.395% Buildings 30,000

48,880



  

 

balance of the aforement ioned designated account  for labor pensio n 

fund. I f the balance is determined insufficient  to  pay o ff the pensio n 

amount  computed by the aforement ioned approach for employees 

qualified for ret irement  within next  year,  the Company will make a 

lump sum contr ibut ion to  make up the short fall before the end o f 

March o f the fo llowing year.  

(2) For the three-month and nine-month per iods ended September 30, 2018 

and 2017, the pension costs recognized by the Group in accordance 

with the afore-ment ioned contribut ion plans were NT$ 569 thousand,  

NT$ 564 thousand, NT$ 1,677 thousand and NT$ 1,700 thousand.  

(3) The Company expects t o  make contr ibut ions o f NT$ 2,221 thousand to 

the pension plans within one year.  

2.  (1) Start ing from July 1,  2005, the Company and subsid iar ies have set  up 

a defined contr ibut ion plan for all employees with ROC cit izenship in 

accordance with the Labor Pension Act .  Where the employees have 

elected to  apply the labor pension system as st ipulated in the Labor  

Pension Act ,  the Company and subsidiar ies make a contr ibut ion in an 

amount  equal to  6% of t he employees’ monthly salar ies or wages to  

their ind ividual accounts in the Bureau of Labor Insurance.  

(2) Advanced Sport ing Goods (Dong Guan) Co.,  Ltd.  and Advanced 

Sport ing Goods(Sha Tian, Dong Guan)  Co., Ltd.  make a pension 

contr ibut ion on a monthly basis in an amount  equal to  a certain 

percentage o f the employee s’ monthly salar ies and wages in  

accordance with the requirements as set  forth in the pension system o f 

the People’s Republic of China. The contribut ion percentage was 13% 

for the three-month and nine-month per iods ended September 30, 2018 

and 2017. The pension for each employee is managed by the 

government ,  hence the Group doesn’t  have further obligat ion except  

for making a monthly contr ibut ion.  

(3) As required by the Vietnamese government ,  Advanced Internat ional 

Mult itech (VN) Corporat ion Ltd. makes a monthly contr ibut ion in an 

amount  equal to  one month o f an emplo yee’s minimum wages to  the 

ret irement  plan, which is managed by the var ious responsible 

departments of the Vietnamese government .  Other than making a 

monthly contr ibut ion, the Company has no furt her obligat ions.  

(4) The pension costs recognized by the Group in accordance the 



  

 

aforement ioned contr ibut ion plans were NT$ 30,023 thousand, NT$ 

26,537 thousand, NT$ 86,204 thousand and NT$ 81,341 thousand for 

the three-month and nine-month per iods ended September 30, 2018 

and 2017.  

Share-based payment s  

1.  The Company was approved by the FSC to issue 5,000 unit s o f employee 

stock opt ions as at  July 26, 2012, with each unit  eligible to  opt  for 1,000 

shares o f the Company’s stock. The total number o f employee  stock 

opt ions is 4,720,000 shares.  The plan for such emplo yee stock opt ion has 

been executed and completed in 2017.  

2.  The Company’s share-based payment  ar rangements are stated as fo llows:  

 

The said share-based payment  arrangements are all set t led in equ ity.  

Note: Term and exercisable percentage of the stock opt ion cert ificates 

(accumulated):  

(1) 50% vested after 2 years of service.  

(2) 75% vested after 3 years of service.  

(3) 100% vested after 4 years o f service.  

3.  The sa id share-based payment  arrangements are stated as fo llows:  

 

Note: The forfeit ed opt ions are opt ions that  have become inva lid due to  

Employee stock options October 11, 2012 4,720,000 5 years Note

Type of arrangement Grant date Quantity granted Contract period Vesting conditions

No.

stock options

Weighted-average

exercise price (in

dollars)

Options outstanding opening

balance at January 1 2,520,000 36$                      

Options forfeited (172,000) -                      

Options exercised (1,937,000) -                      

Options outstanding at

September 30
411,000          34.5                     

Options exercisable at

September 30
411,000          -                      

January 1- September 30 , 2017



  

 

employees’ ret irement  or terminat ion of emplo yment .  

4.  The exercise pr ice of the outstanding opt ions as at September 30, 2017 

was NT$ 34.5,  and the remaining contract  durat ion on a weighted average 

basis is 0.028 year.  

5.  The Black-Scho les opt ion pr ic ing model is used to  est imate the fair value 

of the Company’s Share-based payment  t ransact ion in which the stock 

opt ion is granted on the grant  date.  Relevant  informat ion is as below:  

Note: The expected vo lat ilit y is est imated by taking into account the share pr ices over  

the most  recent  period equal to  the life o f the stock opt ion as the sampling interval,  and 

the effects on stock t ransact ion pr ice caused by the  annual dist r ibut ion of earnings in 

each year.  

6.  For the three-month and nine-month per iod ended September 30, 2017, the 

costs incurred through t ransact ions o f share -based payments were NT$ 0.  

7.  As at  July 7,  2017 and July 16, 2016, the Company adjusted the exercise 

pr ice of the emplo yee stock opt ion cert ificates that  were issued on 

October 11, 2012 from NT$ 36 to NT$ 34.5 and NT$ 37.3 to  NT$ 36, in 

accordance with the regulat ions governing emplo yee stock opt ions.  

Capita l  

As of September 30, 2018, the Company had an author ized capital in the 

amount  of NT$ 1,463,000 thousand ( including 5,000 thousand shares o f 

employee stock opt ion cert ificates and 10,000 thousand shares o f 

convert ible corporate bonds),  and a paid - in capit al in the amount  of NT$ 

1,353,127 thousand with each share pr iced at  NT$ 10. Share payments fo r  

the Company’s issued stocks have been collected in full.  Quant it ies of the 

Company’s outstanding common shares at the beginning of per iods are the 

same as at  the end of the per iods.  

Capita l surplus 

Under the Company Act ,  capital surplus ar ising from shares issued at  

premium or from donat ion may be used for  offset t ing deficit .  Furthermore, if  

the Company has no accumulated loss,  capital surplus may be used for  

issu ing new shares or dist r ibut ing cash in proport ion to shareho lders ' 

origina l ho ldings.  In accordance with regulat ions in t he Secur it ies and 

Exchange Act ,  when the above-ment ioned capital surplus is  used for  

capitalizat ion, the total amount  every year shall not  exceed 10% of the 

paid- in capital.  The Company may use capital surplus to  offset  loss only 

when the amount  of earnings and reserves are insufficient  to  offset  the loss.  

Retained earnings  

1.  The Art icles of Incorporat ion requires that  earnings after the fina l 

Grant date Stock price Exercise price
Exercise price

volatility
Expected duration Expected dividend

Risk-free

interest rate

Fair value

per share

Employee stock options 2012/10/11 $42 $42 33.28% 3.875 years - 0.90% $11.33



  

 

account ,  if any,  be used in the first  place to  pay o ff the profit - seeking 

enterpr ise income tax and to offset  the previous deficit s according to law; 

and 10% of the remainder,  if any, be set  aside as its legal reserve, except  

in cases when the lega l reserve has reached the capit a l amount .  I f there is  

any remaining earnings,  a specia l reserve shall be provided or reversed in 

accordance with laws or regulat ions imposed by the competent  authority; 

the remaining amount ,  if any, sha ll be added up to  the undist r ibuted 

earnings of the pr ior periods to serve as the allocable earnings,  of which 

the amount  of dist r ibut ion and retent ion shall be indicated in the earnings 

dist r ibut ion proposal which is made by the Board o f Directors before 

submit t ing to  the Shareho lders ' Meet ing for approval.  The cash dividends 

dist r ibuted sha ll not  exceed 10% of the total dividends dist r ibuted.  

2.  The Company’s dividend po licy is stated as below: The Company adopts a  

residual dividend po licy in order to  operate sustainably and increase 

profit s.  

3.  Legal reserves may only be used for offset t ing deficit s and issuing new 

shares or dist r ibut ing cash in proportion to  shareho lders’ or igina l 

ho ldings.  However,  when new shares are issued or cash is dist r ibuted, the 

amount  shall be limited to 25% of the reserves in exce ss of the paid- in 

capital.  

4.  The Company may allocate earnings only after providing special reserve 

for debt  balance in other equity on the date of balance sheet ,  and the 

reversa l o f debit  balance in other equity,  if any, may be stated into 

allocable earnings.  

5.  The Company recognized dividends dist r ibuted to shareho lders o f the 

Company in t he amounts equal to  NT$ 173,388 thousand (NT$ 1.3 per  

share) for 2017. The Shareho lders ' Meet ing reso lved on May 25, 2018 to 

dist r ibute NT$ 2.6 to  each common share us ing the undist r ibuted earnings,  

and the dividends came to a total of NT$ 351,813 thousand.  

Operat ing revenue  

All the Group’s revenue comes from contacts with customers under which 

revenue is generated by t ransferr ing goods at  a po int  of t ime. For the 

three-month and nine-month per iods ended September 30, 2018, revenue 

can be sub-classified by operat ing segment  and geographical area,  which 

is stated as fo llows:  

  



  

 

July 1,  2018 ~ September 30, 2018:  

 

January 1,  2018 ~ September 30, 2018:  

 

Other Income and Expenses - Net  

 

Other income 

 

Consumer Products Division

America 1,484,456$                           

Asia 687,648                                

Others 154,015                                

Total 2,326,119$                           

Consumer Products Division

America 5,300,544$                           

Asia 1,745,034                             

Others 641,392                                

Total 7,686,970$                           

July 1- September 30 , 2018 July 1- September 30 , 2017

Mold income 4,136$                                         6,719$                                         

Sample income 20,873                                         5,968                                           

Other income 4,166                                           6,785                                           

29,175$                                       19,472$                                       

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017

Mold income 16,580$                                       14,400$                                       

Sample income 42,121                                         19,695                                         

Other income 27,475                                         17,312                                         

86,176$                                       51,407$                                       

July 1- September 30 , 2018 July 1- September 30 , 2017

Interest income 3,656$                                       1,693$                                 

Others 654                                            67                                        

4,310$                                       1,760$                                 

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017

Interest income 6,975$                                       3,329$                                 

Others 2,076                                         586                                      

9,051$                                       3,915$                                 



  

 

Other gains and losses  

 

 

Addit ional informat ion regarding the nature of expense  

 

 

July 1- September 30 , 2018 July 1- September 30 , 2017

($706) $791

Net currency exchange Gains (losses) 47,970 (19,675)

(1,367) (2,265)

Others (396) (3,781)

$45,501 ($24,930)

Gains (Losses) on disposal of

property, plant and equipment

Net losses on financial assets

and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017

($698) ($2,699)

Net currency exchange Gains (losses) 105,806 (125,599)

(5,635) (2,265)

Others 2,411                                        3,058

$101,884 ($127,505)

Losses on disposal of

property, plant and equipment

Net losses on financial assets

and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

July 1- September 30 , 2018 July 1- September 30 , 2017

Employee benefit expense 667,196$                             573,653$                            

Depreciation expense 77,738                                 80,588                                

Amortisation expense 4,612                                   5,121                                  

749,546$                             659,362$                            

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017

Employee benefit expense 1,903,840$                          1,749,373$                         

Depreciation expense 228,904                               247,244                              

Amortisation expense 14,765                                 14,968                                

2,147,509$                          2,011,585$                         



  

 

Employee benefits expense  

 

 

1.  The Art icles o f Incorporat ion requires that  the Company allocate no 

less than one percent  (1%) of it s annual earnings as employee 

compensat ion, and no greater than five percent  (5%) of its annua l 

earnings as remunerat ion for directors and supervisors; provided,  

however,  that  a port ion of earnings shall be reserved if the Company 

st ill has an accumulated de ficit .  

2.  For the three-month and nine-month per iods ended September 30, 2018 

and 2017, the Company recognized compensat ion to employees in the 

amounts equal to  NT$ 9,230 thousand,  NT$ 7,313 thousand, NT$ 

27,369 thousand, and NT$ 21,509 thousand, respect iv ely,  and 

remunerat ion to directors and supervisors in the amounts equa l to NT$ 

2,500 thousand, NT$ 2,500 thousand, NT$ 7,500 thousand, and NT$ 

7,500 thousand, respect ively,  all presented under payro ll expense.  

The amounts for the nine- month per iod ended September 30, 2018 were 

est imated at  certain percentages based on the profit s earned by the end 

of the year.  

The amounts o f compensat ion to  employees and remunerat ion to 

directors and supervisors for 2017 that  had been reso lved by the Board 

of Directors are the same as the amounts stated on the 2017 financia l 

statements.  The above-ment ioned employee compensat ion was 

dist r ibuted in cash.  

July 1- September 30 , 2018 July 1- September 30 , 2017

Wages and salaries 571,236$                           491,220$                          

Labour and health insurance fees 36,743                               32,335                              

Pension costs 30,592                               27,101                              

Other personnel expenses 28,625                               22,997                              

667,196$                           573,653$                          

January 1- September 30 , 2018January 1- September 30 , 2017

Wages and salaries 1,638,260$                        1,502,487$                       

Labour and health insurance fees 107,645                             98,059                              

Pension costs 87,881                               83,041                              

Other personnel expenses 70,054                               65,786                              

1,903,840$                        1,749,373$                       



  

 

Informat ion about employee compensat ion and remunerat ion to  

directors and supervisors approved by the Board of Directors is  

available on the Market  Observat ion Post  System.  

Income tax 

1.  Income tax expense  

Components of income tax expense  

 

 

2.  Income tax amounts associated with other comprehensive income:  

 

July 1- September 30 , 2018 July 1- September 30 , 2017

Current tax:

Current tax on profits for the period 
 41,201$                                   $5,398

Adjustments in respect of prior years (2) 5

41,199                                     5,403

Deferred tax:

(9,031) 12,410

Income tax expense (gain) $32,168 $17,813

Total current tax

Origination and reversal of temporary

differences

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017

Current tax:

Current tax on profits for the period 
 82,372$                                   29,771$                              

Tax on undistributed surplus earnings -                                           15,411                                

Adjustments in respect of prior years (1,102) (28,671)

81,270                                     16,511                                

Deferred tax:

15,198                                     29,798

8,881                                       -                                      

Income tax expense (gain) $105,349 $46,309

Total current tax

Origination and reversal of temporary

differences

Impact of change in tax rate

July 1- September 30 , 2018 July 1- September 30 , 2017

2$                                   -$                                             

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017

495$                               -$                                             Impact of change in tax rate

Impact of change in tax rate



  

 

3. The pro fit -seeking enterpr ise income tax of t he Company is approved 

by the taxat ion author ity through 2013.  

4.  The amendments to the Income Tax Act  of Taiwan have become 

effect ive on February 7,  2018, which amendments raise the 

profit -seeking enterpr ise income tax rate from 17% to 20% and are 

applicable from 2018.  The Group has assessed the impact  on income tax 

from such tax rate changes.  

Earnings per share  

 

Amount after tax

Weighted average

number of ordinary

shares outstanding

(share in thousands)

Earnings per

Share (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share

$94,396 $135,313 $0.70

Diluted earnings per share

94,396 135,313

-                          168

$94,396 135,481$                 $0.70

July 1- September 30 , 2018

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

of the parent

Assumed conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares Employees’

compensation

shareholders of the parent plus assumed

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares

Profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the parent



  

 

 

 

Amount after tax

Weighted average

number of ordinary

shares outstanding

(share in thousands)

Earnings per

Share (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share

$57,640 $133,665 $0.43

Diluted earnings per share

57,640 133,665

Assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares Employees’ compensation

Employee stock options -                          80

Employees’ bonus -                          173

$57,640 133,918$                 $0.43

shareholders of the parent plus assumed

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares

July 1- September 30 , 2017

Profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the parent

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

of the parent

Amount after tax

Weighted average

number of ordinary

shares outstanding

(share in thousands)

Earnings per

Share (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share

$335,765 $135,313 $2.50

Diluted earnings per share

338,765 135,313

-                          1,042

$338,765 136,355$                 $2.48

January 1- September 30 , 2018

Profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the parent

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

of the parent

Assumed conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares Employees’

compensation

shareholders of the parent plus assumed

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares



  

 

 

Note: Earnings per share would increase if the Company’s outstanding 

employee stock opt ion cert ificates are converted into shares.  

Therefore,  when calcu lat ing the diluted earnings per share,  the 

Company didn’t  assume that  such option cert ificates had been 

converted.  

Operat ing leases  

The Group leases from others land and plants under operat ing leases,  o f 

which the lease terms are located in between 2010 and 2020, and 2017 and 

2020 respect ively.  Most  of the lease ar rangements can be renewed in 

writ ing upon the terminat ion o f the leasing per iods.  Future minimum lease 

payments ar ising from non-cancellable leases are stated as fo llows:  

 

Addit ional informat io n regarding cash flows  

1.  Invest ing and financing act ivit ies with part ial cash payment s:  

Amount after tax

Weighted average

number of ordinary

shares outstanding

(share in thousands)

Earnings per

Share (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share

$252,700 $133,665 $1.89

Diluted earnings per share

252,700 133,665

Assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares Employees’ compensation

Employee stock options 80

-                          737

$252,700 134,482$                 $1.88

Profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the parent

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

of the parent

Assumed conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares Employees’

compensation

shareholders of the parent plus assumed

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares

January 1- September 30 , 2017

September 30, 2018 December 31,2017 September 30, 2017

Not later than one year 10,450$                   10,646$                   10,628$                  

Later than one year but not later thn five yers 7,420 15,099 17,761

17,870$                   25,745$                   28,389$                  



  

 

 

2.  Invest ing and financing act ivit ies that  do not  affect  cash flows:  

 

Changes in financing liabilit ies  

 

(VII)  Related-Party Transact ions  

(1)  Name and relat ionship o f related  part ies  

 

  

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 362,752$                                  118,394$                                

37,619                                      19,303                                    

(34,198) (43,400)

Cash paid during the period 366,173$                                  94,297$                                  

Add: opening balance of payable

on equipment

Less: ending balance of payable on

equipment

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017

65,514$                                    36,019$                                  

100$                                         -$                                        

Property, plant and equipment transferred

from prepayments for business facilities

Other non-current assets from prepayments

for Intangible assets

Short-term loans Short-term bills payable Total financing liabilities

At January 1, 2018 90,454$                      -$                            90,454$                       

Changes in financing liabilities (14,394) 48,880                        34,486

At September 30, 2018 76,060$                      48,880$                      124,940$                     

Short-term loans Short-term bills payable Total financing liabilities

At January 1, 2017 40,336$                      -$                            40,336$                       

Changes in financing liabilities 49,060 -                              49,060

At September 30, 2017 89,396$                      -$                            89,396$                       

Relationship with the Group

BEIJING MINGDA TITANIUM TECHNOLOGY CO, LTD. Affiliated companies of the Group

BAOJI ZATECH MATERIAL CO., LTD. Affiliated companies of the Group

Names of related parties



  

 

Significant  t ransact ions with related part ies  

Acquis it ion o f financia l assets  

 

January 1,  2017 ~ September 30, 2017: None.  

Informat ion about  remunerat ions to  the major management:  

 

 

  

January 1- September 30 , 2017

Accounts No. of shares Objects Consideration

 BAOJI ZATECH

MATERIAL CO., LTD.

Investments accounted for

using equity method
100,000 marketable securities 4,436$                            

 BEIJING MINGDA

TITANIUM TECHNOLOGY

Investments accounted for

using equity method
15,000 marketable securities 665                                 

5,101$                            

July 1- September 30 , 2018 July 1- September 30 , 2017

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 6,273$                                         4,329$                                         

January 1- September 30 , 2018 January 1- September 30 , 2017

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 23,185$                                       20,816$                                       



  

 

(VIII) Pledged Assets  

Assets pledged as co llateral by the Group are enumerated as fo llows:  

 

(IX)  Significant  Cont ingent  Liabilit ies and Unrecognized Contractual Commitment s  

(1)  Cont ingency 

None.  

Commitments  

1.  Balance of outstanding let ters of credit  

 

2.  Capital expenditure commit ted but  not  incurred:  

 

3.  Operat ing lease contracts:  

Please refer to  Note 6 (29) for elaborat ion.  

(X)  Significant  Disaster Losses 

None.  

(XI)  Significant  Subsequent  Events  

None.  

  

September 30, 2018 December 31,2017 September 30, 2017 Purpose

Land 125,648$                      125,648$                      125,648$                   Short and long-term loans

Building-net value 284,027                        296,557                        303,227                     Short and long-term loans

Machinery and equipment 21,238                          -                                -                            Long-term loans

Others 1,428                            -                                -                            Long-term loans

260 270 270 Customs deposits

432,601$                      422,475$                      429,145$                   

Book value

Time deposits and cash(shown as“other non-

current assets”)

September 30, 2018 December 31,2017 September 30, 2017

Raw materials 179,583$                 52,388$                   94,210$                   

September 30, 2018 December 31,2017 September 30, 2017

Property,plant and equipment 144,958$                 94,758$                   66,350$                   



  

 

(XII)  Others  

(1)  Capita l management  

There is no significant  changes in the current  per iod. Please refer to Note 12 

in the conso lidated financia l statements fo r 2017.  

(2)  Financia l Inst ruments  

1.  Types of Financial inst ruments  

 

2.  Risk management  po licy  

There is  no significant  changes in the current  per iod. Please refer to  Note 

12 in the conso lidated financia l statement s for 2017.  

 

September 30, 2018 December 31,2017 September 30, 2017

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
212$                        -$                        -$                         

Available-for-sale financial assets -                           1,368                       5                              

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Equity instruments 55                            -                          -                           

Financial Assets Carried at Cost -                           55                            55                            

Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents 1,229,868                989,078                   1,488,449                

Notes receivable 7,657                       5,980                       4,153                       

Accounts receivable 1,602,181                2,288,717                1,340,609                

Other receivable 17,196                     19,173                     20,602                     

Refundable deposits 8,028                       7,405                       5,512                       

2,865,197$              3,311,776$              2,859,385$              

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial  liabilities -$                         -$                        2,807$                     

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Short-term loans 76,060                     90,454                     89,396                     

Notes payable 2,759                       1,697                       2,263                       

Accounts payable 1,241,202                1,203,816                950,386                   

Other payables 926,519                   1,061,639                881,257                   

Long-term loans 48,880                     -                          -                           

Guarantee deposits 599                          525                          569                          

2,296,019$              2,358,131$              1,926,678$              



  

 

3. The nature and degree of significant  financial r isks  

Except  for mat ters stated below, there is no significant  changes in t he 

current  per iod. Please refer to Note 12 in the conso lidated financia l 

statements for 2017.  

(1) Market  risk  

Foreign exchange rate r isk:  

A. The Group’s business invo lves use of var ious non-funct iona l 

currencies (the Company and some subs idiar ies’ funct iona l 

currency is NTD, whereas some subsidiar ies’ funct ional currency is 

RMB), as a consequence, it  is subject  to effects ar is ing from 

changes in exchange rates.  Assets and liabilit ies that  are 

denominated in foreign currency and significant ly affected by 

changes in exchange rates are stated as below:   

Foreign currency

amount (In

thousands)

Exchange rate
Book value(NTD)

(Foreign currency: functional currency)

Financial assets

   Monetary items

USD:NTD 81,973$               30.48 2,498,537$                 

USD:RMB 24,660                 6.8853 751,637                      

Non-monetary items

RMB:NTD 251,357               4.436 1,115,020                   

Financial liabilities

   Monetary items

USD:NTD 32,965                 30.58 1,008,070                   

USD:RMB 5,833                   6.8853 178,373                      

September 30, 2018



  

 

 
 

 

B. Due to the significant  influence from exchange rate vo lat ilit y,  total 

exchange losses of the Group’s monetary items amounted to  NT$ 

47,970 thousand, NT$ (19,675) thousand, NT$ 105,806 thousand 

Foreign currency

amount (In

thousands)

Exchange rate
Book value(NTD)

(Foreign currency: functional currency)

Financial assets

   Monetary items

USD:NTD 100,182$             29.71 2,976,407$                 

USD:RMB 37,002                 6.5120 1,099,329                   

Non-monetary items

RMB:NTD 243,079               4.565 1,109,656                   

Financial liabilities

   Monetary items

USD:NTD 48,483                 29.81 1,445,278                   

USD:RMB 10,328                 6.5120 307,878                      

December 31, 2017

Foreign currency

amount (In

thousands)
Exchange rate

Book value(NTD)

(Foreign currency: functional currency)

Financial assets

   Monetary items

USD:NTD 65,611$               30.21 1,982,108$                 

USD:RMB 25,881                 6.6470 781,865                      

Non-monetary items

RMB:NTD 240,942               4.551 1,096,527                   

Financial liabilities

   Monetary items

USD:NTD 3,118                   30.31 94,507                        

USD:RMB 6,375                   6.6470 193,226                      

September 30, 2017



  

 

and NT$ (125,599) thousand for the three -month and nine-month 

per iods ended September 30, 2018 and 2017.  

C. The table below illust rates assets and liabilit ies denominated in 

foreign currencies of which the values were mater ially affected by 

the exchange rate vo lat ilit y:  

 
 

 

Pr ice r isk  

The Group doesn’t  expose to  p rice r isks from products.  

Degree of variation
Effect on profit or loss

Effect on other

comprehensive income

(Foreign currency: functional currency)

Financial assets

   Monetary items

USD:NTD 1% 24,985$                   -$                            

USD:RMB 1% 7,516                       -                                  

Non-monetary items

Financial liabilities

   Monetary items

USD:NTD 1% 10,081                     -$                            

USD:RMB 1% 1,784                       -                                  

January 1- September 30 , 2018

Sensitivity analysisSensitivity analysis

Degree of variation
Effect on profit or loss

Effect on other

comprehensive income

(Foreign currency: functional currency)

Financial assets

   Monetary items

USD:NTD 1% 19,821$                   -$                            

USD:RMB 1% 7,819                       -                                  

Financial liabilities

   Monetary items

USD:NTD 1% 945                          -$                            

USD:RMB 1% 1,932                       -                                  

January 1- September 30 , 2017

Sensitivity analysisSensitivity analysis



  

 

Cash flow interest  rate r isk and fa ir value int erest  rate risk  

The Group’s short -term borrowings,  short -term bills payables and 

long-term loans are all inst ruments with fixed int erest  rate,  and 

consequent ly do not  expose to  any significant  cash flow int erest  rate 

r isk.  

(2) Credit  r isk  

Credit  r isk refers to  the r isk of financial lo ss to  the Company ar ising 

from default  by customers or counterparties o f financia l inst ruments 

on the contract  obligat ions.  The internal r isk control asse sses 

customers’ credit  qualit y by taking into account  their financ ia l 

posit ion, histor ical exper ience and other factors.  

Cash and cash equ ivalents and financia l der ivat ives  

Since the t ransact ion po licy adopted requires the Group to t rade only 

with counter-part ies having a good credit  rat ing, there hasn’t  been any 

default  on cash and cash equiva lents or financial der ivat ives.  

Accounts receivable  

A. The Group has established a specific internal credit  po licy, which 

requires ent it ies within the Group to manage and conduct  a credit  

analys is on every new customer before st ipulat ing the terms and 

condit ions for payments and delivery. The internal r isk contro l 

assesses customers’ credit  qualit y by taking into account  their  

financial posit ion, histor ical exper ience and other factors.  

B. The Group adopts the presumpt ion provided in IFRS 9 that  the 

credit  r isk of a financial asset  is deemed significant ly increased 

since init ia l recognit ion when contractual payments are more than 

30 days past  due.  

C. The Group’s accounts receivables are due from ordinary enterpr ises.  

The Group assesses the credit  qualit y o f an individual customer by 

type by taking into account  such customer ’s financ ial posit ion,  

histor ical t ransact ion records,  and current  economic status,  and 

est imates the expected credit  losses on the basis o f the provis io n 

matr ix using the simplified approach.  

  



  

 

D. After the recourse procedures,  the Group writes o ff financia l assets 

to  the extent  of the amount  that  cannot be reasonably expected to  be 

recovered. However,  the Group will cont inue the legal procedures 

to  recourse in order to  secure its creditor ’s r ights.  

E. The Group has established an expected loss rate for different  

segments o f the accounts receivables due from customers as at  

September 30, 2018: 0 .00% to 0.02% for accounts receivables not  

past  due, 0.00% to 0.17% for accounts receivables within 30 days  

past  due, 0.00% to 3.48% for accounts receivables 31 days to  60 

days past  due, 0.02% to 9.39% for accounts receivables 61 days to  

90 days past  due, 0.13% to 13.67% for accounts receivables 91 days  

to  120 days past  due, 1.49% to 35.84% for accounts receivables 121 

days to 150 days past  due, 17.29% to 84.81% for accounts 

receivables 151 days to 180 days past  due, and 100% for accounts 

receivables more t han 180 days past  due. The amount  of the 

accounts receivables that  is more than 31 days past  due const itutes 

roughly 1.74% of the Group’s total accounts receivables.  

F.  Changes in lo ss allowance for notes receivables and accounts 

receivables using the simp lified approach are stated as fo llows:   

 
G. For credit  informat ion for the third quarter  ended September 30, 

2017, please refer to Note 12 (4) for details.  

(3) Liquidity r isk  

A. Cash flows forecast ing is carr ied out  by the Group’s Office o f 

Finance and Account ing in order to  ensure that  suffic ient  funds are 

readily available,  both for the operat ing needs and for the unused 

loan commitments.  

B. The Group’s remaining cash in excess of it s operat ing needs is  

invested in demand deposit s bear ing int erests,  t ime deposits,  bonds 

so ld under repurchase agreement ,  and marketable secur it ies,  all o f 

which are inst ruments eit her with appropriate matur it y or with 

sufficient  liquidity so as to  sat isfy t he said forecast ing and provide 

sufficient  posit ion for dispatching of funds.  As of September 30, 

2018, December 31, 2017 and September 30, 2017, the Group had a 

money market  posit ion in the amounts equal to  NT$ 1,228,561 

thousand, NT$ 988,057 thousand, and NT$ 1,487,729 thousand.  

C. The table below shows an analysis o f the non-der ivat ive financia l 

liabilit ies held by the Group with defined repayment  terms based on 

matur it y dates and undiscounted payment  at  matur it y:  

Accounts receivable Notes receivable

At January 1-IAS 39 8,620$                       -$                         

Adjustments under new standards -                             -                           

At January 1-IFRS 9 8,620                         -                           

Impairment loss turn around (6,613) -                           

 September 30, 2018 2,007$                       -$                         

Year 2018



  

 

 

 

 

D. The Group does not expect  a matur it y analys is o f which the cash 

flows t iming would be significant ly ear lier,  or the actual amount  

would be significant ly different .  

(3)  Fair Value Informat ion:  

1.  Below sta tes the  def in i t ion  of  d ifferen t  levels  of  valuation  techniq ues used  

to  measure the fair value of f inancial and  non -f inancial instruments:  

Level 1: Level 1 inputs are (unadjusted) quoted prices in act ive market s 

for ident ical assets or liabilit ies that  the ent it y can access at  

the measurement  date.  An act ive market  is a market  in which 

t ransact ions for the asset  or liabilit y take place with 

sufficient  frequency and vo lume to provide pr ic ing 

informat ion on an ongo ing basis.  

Level 2: Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market  prices 

Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Less than

 1 year
Between 1 to 2 years Over 2 years

Short-term borrowings 76,060$                     -$                         -$                            

Notes payable 2,759                         -                           -                              

Accounts payable 1,241,202                  -                           -                              

Other payables 926,519                     -                           -                              

Long-term loans 682                            2,255                       48,712                        

 September 30 , 2018

Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Less than

 1 year
Between 1 to 2 years Over 2 years

Short-term borrowings 90,490$                     -$                         -$                            

Notes payable 1,697                         -                           -                              

Accounts payable 1,203,816                  -                           -                              

Other payables 1,061,639                  -                           -                              

December 31, 2017

Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Less than

 1 year
Between 1 to 2 years Over 2 years

Short-term borrowings 89,405$                     -$                         -$                            

Notes payable 2,263                         -                           -                              

Accounts payable 950,386                     -                           -                              

Other payables 881,257                     -                           -                              

Derivative financial liabilities:

2,807$                       -$                         -$                            
Forward foreign exchange contracts

 September 30 , 2017



  

 

inc luded within Level 1 tha t  are observable for the asset  or 

liabilit y,  eit her direct ly or indirect ly.  The fair value of the 

Group’s investment  in der ivat ives is all Level 2 inputs.  

Level 3: Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset  or liabilit y.  

2.  Financial inst ruments not  measured at  fair value  

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial inst ruments not  measured 

at  fair value ( including cash and cash equivalent s,  notes receivables,  

accounts receivable,  other receivables,  short -term borrowings,  notes 

payable,  accounts payable,  other payables and long-term loans) are 

reasonable approximat ion of fair value.  

3.  Below states the informat ion regarding the Group’s financia l inst rument s 

that  have been classified in accordance with the nature,  character ist ics,  

r isks and fa ir va lue hierarchy o f such an asset  or liabilit y:  

 (1) Classified by nature of assets or liabilit ies:  

 

September 30, 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Recurring fair value

measurements

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss

-$           $212 -$              $212

through profit or loss

-$           -$                 55$                $55

Total -$           212$                55$                267$                

December 31, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Recurring fair value

measurements

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss

-$           $1,368 -$              $1,368

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Forward foreign exchange contracts

  Equity securities

Financial assets at other comprehensive

(loss) income



  

 

 

(2) Methods and assumpt ions adopted by the Group for measurement  of 

fair value are stated as fo llows:  

Valuat ion o f der ivat ive financial inst ruments adopts valuat ion models 

that  are commonly used by market  part icipants,  e.g.  discounted cash 

flows method and opt ion pr icing model.  Forward foreign exchange 

contracts are usually valuated based on the current  forward exchange 

rates.  

4.  There was no t ransfer betwee n Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value 

hierarchy as at  the nine-month per iods ended September 30, 2018 and 

2017. 

5.  There were no changes in Level 3 o f the fair value hierarchy as at  the 

nine-month per iods ended September 30, 2018 and 2017.  

6.  Valuat ion process regarding fair value Level 3 is conducted by the 

Group’s finance department ,  by which the independence of fair value o f 

financial inst ruments is ver ified though use o f independent  data source in  

order that  such valuat ion result s are close to  market  condit ions,  and that  

the data source is independent ,  reliable,  consistent  with other resources,  

and representat ive o f the exercisable pr ice.  In addit ion, mult iple act ions 

are regular ly taken to ensure the reasonableness o f the fair value valuat ion,  

e.g.  ca librat ing the valuat ion model,  conduct ing ret rospect ive test ing,  

updat ing the inputs and data for the valuat ion model,  and making any 

necessary fa ir value adjustments.  

7.  Below states the quant itat ive informat ion about  the significant  

unobservable inputs o f the valuat ion model used in the measurement s 

categorized within Level 3 o f the fair value hierarchy, as well as the 

sensit ivity analys is o f changes in significant  unobservable inputs:  

September 30, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Recurring fair value

measurements

Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss

-$           $5 -$              $5

Liabilities

Recurring fair value

measurements

Financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss

-$           $2,807 -$              $2,807Forward foreign exchange contracts

Forward foreign exchange contracts



  

 

 

8.  The Group elects to  adopt  the valuat ion model and valuat ion param eter s 

through caut ious assessment .  Nonetheless,  using different  valuat ion 

models or valuat ion parameters may lead to different  valuat ion result s.  

For financ ial  assets categor ized within Level 3 o f the fair value 

hierarchy, changes in va luat ion parameters will not  have a s ignificant  

influence on e ither pro fit  or loss or other comprehensive income.  

(4)  Effects of init ial applicat ion of IFRS 9 and informat ion on applicat ion o f 

IAS 39 in 2017  

1.  Cr it ical account ing po lic ies adopted for the annual per iod ended 

December 31, 2017 and the nine-month per iod ended September 30, 2017 

are states as fo llows:  

(1) Financial assets measured at  FVTPL  

A. Financial assets at  FVTPL refer to  financial assets held for t rading 

or financial assets designated upon init ial recognit ion a t  fair value 

through profit  or loss.  Financial assets are classified as financia l 

assets held for t rading if the object ive of acquis it ion is to  sell t hem 

in the short -term. Der ivat ives are also categorized as financia l 

assets held for t rading unless they a re designated as hedging 

inst ruments pursuant  to hedge account ing. Financia l assets that  

meet  one o f the fo llowing cr iter ia are designated as at  FVTPL on 

init ia l recognit ion:  

(A).  Hybr id (combined) contracts; or  

(B).  They eliminate or significant ly reduce a measurement  or 

recognit ion inconsistency; or  

(C).  They are managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair  

value basis,  in accordance with a documented r isk management  

or investment  st rategy.  

B. On a regular way purchase or sale basis,  financia l ass ets at  FVTPL 

are recognized and derecognized using set t lement  date account ing.  

C. Financial assets at  FVTPL are init ia lly recognized at  fair va lue.  

Related t ransact ion costs are recognized in pro fit  or loss.  Such 

financial assets are subsequent ly remeasure d and stated at  fair  

value,  and any changes in the fair value of such financia l assets are 

recognized in profit  or loss.  

(2) Loans and Receivables  

Account  receivables are non-der ivat ive loans and receivables,  and 

spec ifically refer to the t rade receivables  due from customers for the 

goods so ld or services rendered in the normal course o f business.  

They are measured at  fair va lue upon init ia l recognit ion and 

subsequent ly measured at   amort ized cost  less the amount  o f 

impair ment  using the effect ive interest  method. However,  short -term 

receivables without interest  payment ,  given insignificant  effects of 

Fair value at

September 30,

2018

Valuation

technique

Significant unobservable

input

Range

(weighted average)

Relationship

of inputs to

fair value

Venture capital shares
-                       Net asset value  Not applicable -                               Not applicable



  

 

their discount ,  are subsequent ly measured at  the invo ice pr ice.  

(3) Impairments o f financia l assets  

A. The Group assesses at  each balance sheet  date whether there is any                  

object ive evidence that  a financial asset  or a group of financia l 

assets is                  impaired. A financial asset  or a 

group of financia l assets is  deemed to be                  

impaired if there is  object ive evidence o f impair ment  as a result  o f 

one or                  more events (loss events) that  has 

occurred after the init ia l recognit ion of                  the 

asset  and that  the impact  from those loss events on the  est imated 

future cash flows o f the financial assets can be est imated reliably.  

B. The cr iter ia  that  the Group uses to  determine whether there is  

object ive evidence o f an impa irment  loss is as fo llows:  

(A) Significant  financia l difficulty o f the issuer or debtor; 

(B) A breach o f contract ,  such as a default  or delinquency in 

int erest  or principal payment s;  

(C) The Group granted the borrower a concession that  a lender  

would not otherwise consider for economic or legal reasons 

relat ing to  the borrower ’s financ ial difficulty;  

(D) It becomes probable t hat  the borrower will enter bankruptcy or 

other financia l reorganizat ion;  

(E) The disappearance of an act ive market  for that  financia l asset  

because o f financial difficult ies; or  

(F) A significant  or prolonged decline in the fair value o f an 

investment  in an equity inst rument  below it s cost .  

C. When the Group assesses that  there has been object ive evidence o f 

impair ment  and an impairment  loss has occurred, account ing for 

impair ment  is made as fo llows in accordance with the category o f 

financial assets:  

(A) Financial assets measured at  amort ized cost  

The amount  of the impairment  lo ss is  measured as t he difference 

between the asset’s carrying amount  and the present  value o f 

est imated future cash flows discounted at the  financia l asset’s 

origina l effect ive interest  rate,  and is recognized in pro fit  or 

lo ss.  I f,  in a subsequent  per iod, the amount  of the impairment  

lo ss decreases and the decrease can be related object ive ly to  an 

event  occurring after the impairment  loss was  recognized, the 

previous ly recognized impairment  loss is reversed through 

profit  or loss to the extent  that  the carrying amount  of the asset  

does not  exceed it s amort ized cost  that  would have been at  the 

date of reversal had the impairment  loss not  been r ecognized 

previous ly.  The impairment  lo ss amount  recognized or reversed 

is adjusted to  the carrying amount  of the asset  through the lo ss 

allowance account .  

(B) Financial assets measured at  cost 

The amount  of the impairment  lo ss is  measured as t he differenc e 

between the asset 's carrying amount  and the present  value o f 

est imated future cash flows discounted at current  market  return 

rate of similar financial asset , and is recognized in pro fit  or loss.  



  

 

Impairment  lo ss recognized for this category shall not  be 

reversed subsequent ly.  The impairment  lo ss amount  recognized 

is adjusted to  the carrying amount  of the asset  through the lo ss 

allowance account .  

(4) Der ivat ives  

Der ivat ives are init ially recognized at  the fair value on the date when 

contracts are signed, and subsequent ly measured at  fair value with fair  

value changes recognized in pro fit  or loss.  Der ivat ives,  which are 

linked to  equity inst ruments without  a quoted price ( i .e.  the fair value 

of which cannot  be reliably measured) and must  be set t led by de liver y 

of such unquoted equity inst rument ,  are presented as “financial assets 

carr ied at  cost” by the Group.  

2.  Reconciliat ion between the carrying amount  of financia l assets prepared 

under IAS 39 since December 31, 2017 and the amount  under IFRS 9 

star ing from January 1,  2018 is stated as follows:  

 

Equity inst ruments,  which were categor ized within “financial assets 

carr ied at  cost” under IAS 39, totaled NT$ 55 thousand; since the Group 

do not ho ld such equity inst rument  for trading purpose, the are  classified 

at  the init ial recognit ion o f IFRS 9 as “financial assets (equity inst ruments)  

measured at  FVTOCI”.  

3.  Informat ion regarding cr it ical account ing it ems as at  December 31, 2017 

and September 30, 2017 is presented below:  

(1) Financial assets measured at  FVTPL 

 

 
A.  The recognized gains from the Group’s financial assets held for  

t rading for the three-month and nine-month per iods ended 

September 30, 2017 were both NT$ 490 thousand. (presented as 

“Other Gains and Losses”)  

B.  Below states the informat ion on t ransact ions and contracts o f 

financial der ivat ives that  are not  a hedged item:  

Hedging Available-for-sale-Equity securities

Financial assets at other

comprehensive (loss)

income

Financial assets

carried at cost
Total Retained Earnings Other Equity

IAS39 -                                                    55     55 -                      -             

Trans to financial assets

at other comprehensive

(loss) income 55                                 

(55)      - -                      -             

IFRS9 55                                 -                   55   -                      -             

Effect

December 31, 2017 September 30, 2017

Current items:

Financial assets held for trading

   Non-hedging derivatives $1,368 $5

   Valuation adjustment of financial assets held for trading -                                 -                          

$1,368 $5

Items



  

 

 
The Group entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to  sell 

US dollars in order to hedge the risk ar ising from purchase and 

sales of goods However,  such t ransact ions did not apply hedge 

account ing.  

C.  No financial assets measured at  FVTPL were pledged by The 

Group as collateral.  

(2) Financial assets measured at  cost 

 

A.  The afore-ment ioned equity investments should have been 

classified as available - for-sale financia l assets according to the 

Group’s invest ing purposes.  However,  such equity investments are 

classified as “Financial assets carr ied at  cost” since their fair value 

cannot be reliably measured due to facts that  they are not t raded in 

an act ive market ,  and that  neither industr ial informat ion on similar  

companies nor financia l informat ion on investees is sufficient ly 

available.  

B.  As o f December 31, 2017 and September 30, 2017, no financia l 

assets carr ied at  cost  were pledged as co llateral.  

  

Derivative instruments

Contract amount

(notional principal)
Contract period

Current items:

Forward foreign exchange contracts
 USD    2,000,000 2018.1.26~2018.3.26

Derivative instruments

Contract amount

(notional principal)
Contract period

Current items:

Forward foreign exchange contracts
 USD   100,000 2017.9.28~2017.10.26

December 31, 2017

September 30 , 2017



  

 

(3) Financial liabilit ies measured at  FVTPL 

 
A.  The recognized losses from the Group’s financial liabilit ies held 

for t rading for the three-month and nine-month per iods ended 

September 30, 2017 were both NT$ 2,755 thousand. (presented as 

“Other Gains and Losses”)  

B.  Below states the informat ion on t ransact ions and contracts o f 

financial der ivat ives that  are not  a hedged item:  

 
The Group entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to  sell 

US dollars in order to hedge the risk ar ising from purchase and 

sales of goods However,  such t ransact ions did not apply hedge 

account ing.  

4.  Informat ion respect ing the credit  r isks as at  December 31, 2017,  

September 30, 2017 and the nine-month per iod ended September 30, 2017 

is stated as fo llows:  

(1) Credit  r isk refers to  the r isk o f financial loss to  the Company ar is ing 

from default  by customers or counterparties o f financial inst ruments 

on the contract  obligat ions.  The Group has established a specific  

int ernal credit  po licy, which requires ent it ies within the Group to 

manage and conduct  a credit  analys is on every new customer before 

st ipulat ing the terms and cond it ions for payments and delivery. The 

int ernal r isk control assesses customers’ credit  qualit y by taking into 

account  their financial posit ion, historical exper ience and other 

factors.  The credit  r isk mainly der ives from cash and cash equ ivalents,  

der ivat ive financia l inst ruments,  and deposits with banks and financia l 

inst itut ions,  as well as accounts receivable not  yet  co llected in cash.  

The Group deals with financia l inst itut ions having high credi t  qualit y.  

The Group also deals with var ious financial inst itut ions in order that  

credit  r isks can be diversified.  

(2) The credit  limit  had not  been exceeded in the third quarter of 2017,  

and Management  didn’t  expect  any significant  loss result ing from the  

default  o f a counter party.  

(3) The Group’s accounts receivables that  are neither past  due nor 

impaired a ll meet  the credit  standards st ipulated based on the 

counter-part ies ' industr ial character ist ics,  operat ion scale and 

profitabilit y.  

December 31, 2017 September 30 , 2017

Current items:

Financial liabilities held for trading

   Non-hedging derivatives -$                             2,807$                           

   Valuation adjustment -                               -                                 

-$                             2,807$                           

Items

Contract amount

(notional principal)
Contract period

US$11,100,000 106.8.9~106.12.26
Forward foreign exchange

contracts

September 30 , 2017

Derivative financial liabilities



  

 

(4) Aging analys is o f financial assets that  are past  due but  not impaired is 

as fo llows:  

 
The above aging analys is is  based on the number of days past  due.  

 

(5) Analys is o f changes in impaired financial assets:  

A. As o f December 31, 2017 and September 30, 2017, the Group’s 

individually impaired accounts receivables were NT$ 0.  

B. Changes in allowance for doubtful accounts are stated as fo llows:  

 
(5)  Effects of init ial applicat ion of IFRS 15 and informat ion on applicat ion o f 

IAS 11 and IAS 18 in 2017  

1.  Cr it ical account ing polic ies regarding revenue recognit ion for the annua l 

per iod ended December 31, 2017 and fo r the nine -month per iod ended 

September 30, 2017 are states as fo llows:  

(1) The Group manufactures and sells consumer products.  Revenue is the 

fair value o f consider at ion received or receivable for goods so ld to 

external customers dur ing the ordinary course of business,  presented as 

the net  value after deduct ing business tax,  sales returns,  discounts and 

allowances.  Revenue from goods sold is recognized only when the 

goods have been delivered to  customers,  the selling amount  can be 

reliably measured, and any future economic benefit  associated with the 

goods so ld is  highly possible to  flow to the ent it y.  Goods are deemed 

delivered only when significant  r isks and rewards  of ownership o f t he 

goods are t ransferred to customers,  the Group retains neither  

cont inuing manager ial invo lvement  to  the degree usually associated 

with ownership nor effect ive control over the goods sold,  and 

customers accept  the goods in accordance wit h the selling contract ,  or 

when any object ive evidence suggests that all acceptance clauses have 

been sat isfied.  

(2) The Group offers customers allowances for defect ive products sold,  and 

est imates discounts on a historical basis.  A sa les allowance is prov ided 

when sales are recognized.  

2.If the Group cont inues to apply the aforement ioned account ing polic ies for  

the nine-month per iod ended September 30, 2018, there will be no  

December 31, 2017  September 30 , 2017

Up to 30 days $70,282 $44,710

31 to 90 days 26,480 29,856

6,095 32,238

Over 181 days $6,613 $13,198

$109,470 $120,002

91 to 180 days

Individual provision Group provision Total

At January 1 -$                             10,984$                         10,984$                   

Provision for impairment 6,728                           10,812 17,540

At September 30 6,728$                         21,796$                         28,524$                   

Year 2017



  

 

significant  influence over the line items both on the balance sheets and on 

the statement  of comprehensive income.  

(XIII) Addit ional Disc losures 

(The required disclosure on investees comes in part  from the financial statement s 

for the same per iod that  were prepared by investees but  not reviewed by an 

independent  auditor.  Besides,  t ransact ions with subsid iar ies have been eliminated 

in conso lidat ion of the financia l statements.  The disclosed inform at ion below is 

for reference.)  

(1)  Informat ion about  significant  t ransact ions:  

1.  Loans to  others: None.  

2.  Endorsements and Guarantees: None.  

3.  Marketable Secur it ies Held at  the End of the Per iod (Excluding 

investment  in Subsid iar ies,  Associates and Joint  Ventures): Please refer to  

Appendix Table 1.  

4.  Aggregate Trading Value on the Same Secur it ies (Including Purchase and 

Sales) Reaching NT$300 Mi llion or 20 Percent  of the Paid - in Capital or  

More: None.  

5.  Acquis it ion o f Property Amount ing to  At Least  NT$ 300 Million or 

Exceeding 20% of Paid- in Capital:  None.  

6.  Disposal o f Property Amount ing to  At  Least  NT$ 300 Million or 

Exceeding 20% of Paid- in Capital:  None.  

7.  Purchases from and Sales to  Related Part ies Amount ing to  At  Least  NT$ 

100 Million or Exceeding 20% of Paid - in Capit al: Please refer to  

Appendix Table 2.  

8.  Receivables from Related Part ies Amount ing to  At  Least  NT$ 100 Millio n 

or Exceeding 20% of Paid- in Cap ital: Please refer to  Appendix Table 3.  

9.  Engagement  in der ivat ive t ransact ions: Please refer to  Note 6 (2) (13),  12 

(3) and 12 (4).  

10. Parent -Subsidiary and Subsid iary-Subsidiary Business Relat ions and 

Significant  Transact ions and Amounts Thereof Please refer to  Appendix 

Table 4.  

(2)  Reinvestment  Informat ion  

Name, Locat ion and Informat ion on Investee Companies (not  Including 

Investee Companies in China): Please refer to  Appendix Table 5.  



  

 

(3)  Investments in Mainland China  

1.  Investee Informat ion: Please refer to  Appendix Table 6.  

2.  Significant  t ransact ions between the Company and investees in Mainland 

China direct ly or indirect ly through ent it ies in a third area: Please refer to  

Appendix Table 7.  

(XIV)  Segment  Informat ion 

(1)  General Informat ion:  

The Group is pr imar ily engaged in manufactur ing o f consumer products for  

the prest igious brands around the wor ld.  The chief operat ing decis io n 

makers conduct  performance evaluat ion and resources allocat ion based on 

the operat ing profit  ( loss) of the Division o f Consumer Products.  According 

to  the requirements as set  forth in IFRS 8, the Group is a single reportable 

segment .  

(2)  Segment  Informat ion 

The Group evaluates the performance o f an operat ing segment  by examining 

the profit  before tax of a cont inuing operat ion. Such measurement  standard 

precludes the effects from non-recurr ing expenses o f an operat ing segment .  

Management  of interest  income and expenses is not  authorized to  operat ing 

segments but  assigned to the Group’s finance department  that  is respon sible 

for management  of the status of cash.  

(3)  Reconciliat ion of segment  pro fit  or loss  

The measurement  method used for revenue reported to the chief operat ing 

decis ion makers is t he same as that  used for revenue as stated on the 

statement  of comprehensive income. The measurement  method used for tota l 

amount  of assets and liabilit ies reported to the chief operat ing decisio n 

makers is the same as that  used for the total amount  of assets and liabilit ie s 

stated on the financia l statements.  
 


